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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA O

MARKET REVIEW

The market was facing multiple risks in 2021.

of the COVID-19 pandemic,

Being the second year
its impact continued to be severe for
the hospitality industry globally. Although certain major economies
show a recovery momentum consequent to a widespread vaccination
coverage and community immunity, the high inflection rate still hinder
international travel. Global hotel sector continued to face severe
disruption and demand remained subdued. Other than the impacts of
the COVID-19 pandemic, it is important to note the tension between
the United States (the "US") and the People’s Republic of China (the

“PRC") remained intense.

From the domestic perspective, the PRC led the global economic
recovery with effective epidemic prevention mechanism and the
advantages of a complete industry chain and has avoided adverse
impact of bigger waves of Delta and Omicron infection that delayed
progress elsewhere and has pushed ahead in economic recovery, driven
by rising domestic demand. Judging from that, the PRC is expected to
remain as one of the key growth drivers of the world and continued to
manage a growth in 2021. The PRC’s gross domestic product increased
by approximately 8.1% as compared to year-on-year in 2020, with
an average growth rate of approximately 5.1% in the past two years.
Meanwhile, there were approximately 128 million of people entered/
exited through the immigration clearance in the PRC during the year
ended 31 December 2021, which represented only a decrease of

approximately 3%, as compared to year-on-year of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s business
and financial performance had been continuedly impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic with the travel restrictions, revenue of the
Group attained HK$79.1 million, representing an increase of 17.7%
as compared to HK$67.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2021
was a loss of HK$38.3 million (2020: HK$83.4 million) which was
mainly attributable to administrative and other operating expenses
of HK$84.7 million (2020: HK$78.5 million); selling and distribution
expenses of HK$0.3 million (2020: HK$0.3 million); finance costs of
HK$3.3 million (2020: HK$1.8 million); loss on fair value changes of
investment properties of HK$33.5 million (2020: HK$37.3 million)
and income tax expense of HK$22,000 (2020: income tax credit of
HK$9,000); partially offset by gross profit of HK$40.4 million (2020:
HK$11.3 million); gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$15.0 million
(2020: HK$55.7 million); other income, gains and losses,

HK$28.2 million (2020: HK$12.3 million).

net of

The performance of the Group's hotel operations and securities
trading during the year ended 31 December 2021 under review, the
commentary on the hotel sector and the changes in general market
conditions and the potential impact on their operating performance
and future prospects are contained in the succeeding sections headed

“BUSINESS REVIEW" and “PROSPECTS".
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

(a)

(b)

Hotel Operations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the hotel operations
comprise the operations of two “Rosedale” branded 4-star rated
hotels located in Guangzhou and Shenyang. Under the aforesaid
challenging operating environment in the year under review,
overall revenue generated from hotel operations increased by
17.7% to HK$79.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 (Year ended 31 December 2020: HK$67.2 million). The
combined average occupancy rate of the Group decreased by
13.6% to 24.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Year
ended 31 December 2020: 38.0%). To combat the competitive
environment, the Group will continue to invest resources to
enhancing its market network and positioning and, in the
meantime, will further streamline its business operations to

contain costs efficiently.

Securities Trading

The segment recorded a profit of HK$0.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (Year ended 31 December 2020:
segment loss of HK$0.1 million), mainly representing fair value

gain of investments held for trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and will continue to impact
materially our business, financial condition and results of operations.
While we believe strong liquidity position will enable us to fund our
current obligations for the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2021, the Group's cash and bank balances and investments held
for trading amounted to HK$1,782.7 million (31 December 2020:
HK$1,813.5 million). The Group has interest-bearing borrowings
amounted to HK$22.0 million (31 December 2020: HK$22.0 million).

The Group's current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2021 were HK$1,853.6 million and HK$88.3 million (31 December
2020: HK$1,853.4 million and HK$82.3 million), respectively. As a
result, the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
21.0 (31 December 2020: 22.5). The gearing ratio as at 31 December
2021, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was 1.2% (31 December

2020: 1.2%).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

The borrowing (current liabilities) was secured by the Group's interest
over certain subsidiaries as at each of 31 December 2021 and 31

December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each

of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the Group will actively
consider the use of relevant financial instruments to manage currency

exchange risks in line with our business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was not subject
to the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will
continue to monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the
application of relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated

with interest rates.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2021, the Group had 369 employees of which 358
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration
packages were determined in accordance with individual's
responsibility, competence and skills, qualifications, experience and
performance as well as market pay-level. Staff benefits include training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and other

competitive fringe benefits.

In face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has implemented certain
protocols to protect our employees. These measures include: (i) remote
working arrangements and flexible working hours; (ii) restrictions on
access to the offices and temperature screening; (iii) meeting are held
by video conference or conference call if possible; (iv) self-isolation
with in cases of developing symptoms or close contact with suspected
cases of COVID-19; and (v) granting of paid on necessary vaccination

leave.

To provide incentives and rewards to employees, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme for the eligible participants (including

employees).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The global pandemic persists as of this report at the third quarter of
2022, the hotel industry was still under the midst of COVID-19 because

of the resurgence of its variants in various areas.

Looking forward, with the COVID-19 pandemic continuing and the
full market impact of the new Omicron variant is yet to be felt, it is
generally expected that international travel shall be resumed normal in
2024 via high vaccination rates and community immunity. Furthermore,
under the dynamic clearing policy and with the help of the stringent
prevention measures implemented domestically and the mainland,
the number of infection cases is expected be under control soon
during the year. The Company is relatively confident the reopening of
the border between mainland and Hong Kong shall be probably be
foreseen during the last quarter of 2022. Meanwhile, we will continue
to cooperate with the government and participate in any other
government schemes and plans available to our hotels from time to
time to battle the pandemic. Besides seeking further high-quality hotel
investment opportunities, the Group shall look into other business
segments with high growth potentials including commercial and
residential property development projects in the PRC to enhance the

return of the Company and shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Directors’ Profile
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Chung Sun, aged 59, has been the Chairman of the
Company since October 2020. Mr. Tam owns a number of companies
in Mainland China and has over 30 years of experience in real estate
development, hotel operations and development of large-scale
commercial projects. He also has extensive management experience
in various types of business activities in Mainland China, including
trading, finance and catering. Mr. Tam graduated from the Program of
Doctor in Management Philosophy at the Department of Philosophy,
Sun Yat-sen University, Guangzhou in 2011. In July 2011, Mr. Tam was
awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service
by the then Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in recognition of Mr. Tam’s meritorious community service,
particularly his contribution in striving for the rights of Hong Kong

owners of mainland properties.

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 59, has been the managing director of the
Company since May 2019. He is also the chairman of the corporate
governance committee, a member of the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than 30 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and finance in international accounting firms
and listed companies. Mr. Lai holds a master degree in business
administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lai was previously the group financial
controller of the Company and worked for the Company from March
1998 to April 2015. Mr. Lai had also been an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company
Limited (now known as SMI Culture & Travel Group Holdings Limited
(in liquidation)), (the listing of issued shares of which was cancelled by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 21 March
2022), since June 2012 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director in August 2013 and up to November 2013. Prior to rejoining
the Company, Mr. Lai was a director of various subsidiaries of a Hong

Kong listed company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James, aged 58, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company on 22 April 2022. He graduated from the
Victoria University of Switzerland (B =42 F/55 K2) with a PhD in
Business Administration (DBA) in 2009. He received a Master Degree
in Business Administration from the University of Northern Virginia
(EBEIC#HEZFIEAE)in 2006 and a Doctor's Degree in Business
Administration from Warnborough College-UK (ZEE A E) in
2007, an EMBA degree from the School of Continuing Education at
Tsinghua University in Beijing Qb FUBZEXBREBAH S EPT) and an
EMBA degree from Peking University (AE R K E2) .

Dr. Ho has more than 30 years senior management experience in
various industries and listed companies including hotel management,
natural gas exploration, tourism, catering, technology development

and real estates development.

Dr. Ho has been:

1) Vice Chairman of Beijing Longquan Hotel (1999-2002);

2) Beijing Chengrong Real Estate Development Company Limited*
(ERMEEMERERSRAR),

Beijing Yijingyuan real estate development project* Gt R15 2 E
Fi#EIER) (1999-2002);

Managing Director for the

3) Director and Deputy General Manager of Aviation Industry
Corporation of China (2001-2002);

4)  Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong Wing On Travel Services
Limited (2002);

5)  Chief Executive Officer of Dong Fang Gas Holdings Limited (2002-
2005);

6) Legal Representative of Harbin Singapore Hotel (2002-2007);

7)  Executive Director of SHS Holdings Limited (2003-2005);
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

8)  Executive Director of HLH Group Limited (2003-2006);

9)  Vice Chairman of Qitaihe Xunda Gas Co., Ltd.* (£ & MEMRE
APR/AE]) (2003-2005);

10) Legal Representative of Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel (2004-2020);

11) Managing Director of Henan Zhongtian Beidou Satellite
Application Industry Development Co., Ltd.* GAJEg & ARk 16 H&r
EEXEEFMWAT)(2017-2018); and

12) Co-CEO and Executive President of Henan Military Industry
Aerospace Science and Technology Development Co. Ltd.* GAIE
BEIMRRZARAQE) (2017-2021).

Dr. Ho is currently the Chairman and Associate Director of China Police
Network Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (FEZEREBEFEMILRER
‘AF)); the Chairman of the board of supervisors of Tiancheng lJiafu

Energy Technology Co. Ltd.* (R EEEREIMTERAR).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang, aged 27, was appointed as the independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 April 2022. He
graduated from Xinyang Agriculture and Forestry University as Bachelor
of Agriculture in 2018. Mr. Chen has been the Regional General
Manager of Zhengzhou Zhoumo Catering Services Co. Ltd.* (EF)
BARERRFEARAT)in the Zhengzhou region during the period
from December 2018 to September 2020. During his tenure, he was
mainly responsible for the daily operation and management of all local
restaurants in the region, as well as planning and developing new
restaurants. Since November 2020 and up to present, Mr. Chen is the
Deputy General Manager of Guangzhou Jinxin Property Management
Co., Ltd.* (BEMEIBMYEEE B AF)and is mainly responsible for

property development projects and operation management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 61, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since March 2007. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in
Business Administration. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of Shaw Brothers
Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"). He has
also been an independent non-executive director of Media Asia Group
Holdings Limited since 24 April 2020, the issued shares of which are
listed on the growth enterprise market of the SEHK. Mr. Poon was an
independent non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited (in
liquidation), the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the

main board of SEHK, until he resigned on 9 December 2020.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2008. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Sin has over 25 years’
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries
and in the banking field. He is an independent director of China
Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
issued shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace
in the United States of America. Mr. Sin was an independent non-
executive director of Master Glory Group Limited (in liquidation), the
issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, until he resigned on 9
December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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Senior Management’s Profile
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Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 50, has been the Financial Controller
of the Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive
accounting experience through management roles for a variety of
public and private multinational corporations. Mr. Lau is a member of
CPA Australia and a certificate holder of American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr. Lo Kam Tai, aged 34, was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 7 March 2022. He holds a bachelor degree of
business administration and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and corporate compliance. Mr. Lo is currently a

director of a corporate professional service firm in Hong Kong.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
("Company"”) is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
practices which are crucial to the development of the Company and
can safeguard the interests of its shareholders (“Shareholders”).
The board of directors of the Company (“Board” and “Directors”
respectively) has adopted various policies and procedures to ensure
compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the Board, the Company had complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year”),
except for code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 with considered reason(s)

explained below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

During the Year, the Company was principally engaged in the sector
of hotel investment in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC").
The Company’s corporate objective is to create and enhance value
for Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, the business
strategies of the Company are to maintain the long term growth and
the profitability of the Company. Coupled with the development plan
for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA) of the
government of the PRC, the Directors see that our main operations
continue to stay within the core engine of the development in the
region. The Company is committed to maintaining a solid and healthy
financial status with a solid cash balance and an efficient debt/equity
ratio that will enable the Company to finance the existing operations

and proceed with potential investments.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERHRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors including three executive
Directors (“Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors ("INED(s)"”) whose biographical details are set out in the

“Directors’ Profile” on pages 8 to 11 of this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to Shareholders and responsible
for the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”), including formulating strategies, establishing
strategic directions, overseeing the Group’s businesses and systems
of risk management and internal controls, monitoring operating and
financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive
Directors. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the

management.

In addition, the Board has established the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s

affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group, and review and approve the
Group's annual and interim results, and other matters which need to
be dealt with. Additional Board meetings will be held as and when
required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by all Directors in lieu of

a meeting pursuant to bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws”).

During the Year, eight (8) full Board meetings (including four regular

Board meetings) were held.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the
Board and the annual general meeting of the Company held during the

Year is set out as follows:

TEER/RS

EET®
SRERSMARNAEENETHRRESS
EERAANDREBEAS Z HEE RN
T

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

HEBITEERY
Board Annual General
Meeting Meeting
Directors 5% BExges RRBFERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman) BRI (F/E) 7/8 0/1
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director) BTESRYE (EFHELIE) 8/8 11
Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James X EL (F-F - N/A i N/A i F
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) P95 —+ — HEEEZ(T)
Mr. Liu Hao BERE (B-E-—4F 8/8 0/1
(resigned with effect from 3 March 2022) =8 = HEEEFE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUEBITES
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang RIgHEE (H - - —4F N/A R N/A FiEH
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) P15 —+ — A#E#EZ(F)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert RS E 7/8 1/1
Mr. Sin Chi Fai RSB E 8/8 0/1
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva MU E(B-E-—F 8/8 01

(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) P95 —+— HEEFHE)
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Corporate Governance Report

TEER/RS

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) between

each other.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers

of the Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) is responsible for the
leadership of the Board, and the formulation of strategies and policies
of the Group while the managing director of the Company (“Managing
Director”) is responsible for the management of the business of the
Group, and the implementation of major strategies. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director is
clearly established and set out in writing. Mr. Tam Chung Sun is the

Chairman and Mr. Lai Tsz Wah is the Managing Director.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (CONTINUED)

Code provision E.1.2 (subsequently rearranged and renumbered as
code provision F.2.2) of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Tam
Chung Sun, the Chairman, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2021 (“2021 AGM") due
to COVID-19 restrictions. Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, the Managing Director,
attended and took the chair of the 2021 AGM in accordance with Bye-
Law 68 of the Bye-Laws and answered questions from shareholders of

the Company.

Mr. Tam Chung Sun, the Chairman, had held a meeting with the
INEDs without the presence of the Executive Directors during the
Year according to code provision A.2.7 (subsequently rearranged and

renumbered as code provision C.2.7) of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 (deleted with effect form 1 January 2022) of the
CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The current INEDs were not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. The Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices
are no less exacting than those prescribed by code provision A.4.1, and

does not intend to take any steps in this regards at the moment.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 29 July 2022, the nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) held a meeting to assess the independence
of INEDs. Taking into account the independence criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination Committee considered that

all INEDs remained independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERHRS

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to code provision A.6.5 (subsequently rearranged and
renumbered as code provision C.1.4) of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the
corporate governance and the latest developments of the Listing Rules
for their reading. Directors were also provided with monthly updates

on the Group’s business and financial matters.

From time to time, the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) circulates details of training courses which may be of
interests to the Directors. The Directors are encouraged to attend the
relevant training courses and seminars organised by professional bodies

at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, the Directors
(namely, Mr. Tam Chung Sun, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, Mr. Liu Hao (resigned
with effect from 3 March 2022), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (resigned with
effect from 22 April 2022), Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Sin
Chi Fai) participated in continuous professional development during
the Year by reading materials provided by the Company. Mr. Liu Hao

had also attended seminars organized by professional bodies.

Remarks: Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James was appointed as executive director
on 22 April 2022 and Mr. Chen Zeng Guang was appointed as
independent non-executive director on 22 April 2022 and therefore are

not included above.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all the Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with

the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee ("Audit

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chen

Zeng Guang and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship
with the external auditor; (i) to assist the Board to review the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function); and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of the external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held five meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and make

recommendations to the Board;
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TEEER/RS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

(2) made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited as external auditor of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Moore Stephens CPA

Limited.

(3) approved the engagement letter of external auditor for the year

ended 31 December 2020;

(4) considered and made recommendation to the Board on the re-

appointment of external auditor at the 2021 AGM; and

(5) reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit

(2)

3)

4

(5)

BEZEETE ®»

REEFENBE_S_SET A
S+—BLHBEEEEEX (B8 8
HEEBAERARAKAT 2 IR
BT UABAE TS 5
BRATREEZERER

HEINERBMBE T _TF+ 8
=+—HIEFEZEBEE,

TREREFEFEN T _TFRRE
FREG LEBINEBZEE ; &

W AERZ BB EERANEBEEGE
BIES K BL

REREZEGHENTEERETHNER

Committee held during the Year is as follows: HEBERWOT :
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Members of Audit Committee BZEEENE HEBOTEERK
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE S E 5/5
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRIGH ek (HZE-ZF N/A FiEF
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) P8 =+ HEEZT)
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEREEE 5/5
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BREIULE (BZEZ—F 5/5
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) mE —+— HEEFFE)
20 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line

with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, and one Executive Director, namely, Mr.

Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i)
to consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company; (ii) to review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management of the Company; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management of the Company for 2021;

(2) reviewed and approved the proposed level of salary increase of
employees, including the senior management of the Company,

and executive Directors for 2022; and

(3) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the

remuneration of the INEDs for 2022.
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TERERHRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee held during the Year is set out below:

HINEE T (

Fi

BFWNEETHERTFEERETH

Sh=k v
HEEROT
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Members of Remuneration Committee HNEEGRE HEBOTEERK
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRIgAEE (B2 2F
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) ME —+ - HiEeEEE) N/A FiEF
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7 B B S 11
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BFELRE 11
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEIULLE (BZEZZ
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) ME =+ HiEHE 11
Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and BB ZHFMN D EBRRESEN LT ZEBE
responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions. RERITRAMERE
During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his own RAFER HEEFLERTEHAKRAZFH
remuneration. B o
Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in EBEERAEEZMESFBEHNAERGESHT
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. B ARMEE120
The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the
Year is within the following bands:

SREBAENRAFEZHMEUTEE
[z

Number of
Up to HK$1,000,000

Senior
Management

BHREEAEBHE
1,000,000/ 7t 1k
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely, Mr.
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.

Chen Zeng Guang and one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i) to review
the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the Board at
least annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the corporate strategy of the Company; (ii)
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board having due regard to the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) to assess
the independence of INEDs; (iv) to review regularly the time required
from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;
and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
(vi) to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives, if any, that the Board has set for achieving
diversity on the Board, as well as assess the progress on achieving the
objectives; and (vii) to review the Board Nomination Policy (as defined

below), as appropriate.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(2) considered and made recommendations to the Board on the re-

appointment of retiring Directors at the 2021 AGM,;

(3) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in light

of the Board Diversity Policy; and

(4) reviewed the time required from a Director to perform his

responsibilities to the Company.
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TERERHRS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Nomination Committee held during the Year is as follows:

REZEEE ®
RELEEERENAEENETHNESEY
SR

Number of Meetings

Members of Nomination Committee REEEEHE Attended/Held
HEBITEERHK

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE S E 2/2

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRIGH ek (B ZF N/A FiEF
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) e —+ - HEEZF)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BTESLE 2/2

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BREIULE (BZEZ—F 2/2
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) e —+ = HEFEF)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEENEZTERE

The Board recognizes the importance of diversity in relation to its
business, and has adopted the Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to guide the Board in achieving its diversity in terms of
gender, age, educational background, skills, knowledge, professional
experience and length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness

of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the

Board Diversity Policy when recommending candidates to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of

diversity each candidate can bring to the overall Board composition.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of

diversity, including but not limited to, those described above.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness, and recommend any required

revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (CONTINUED)

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and taken into account
the existing composition of the Board and the business nature of the
Group, the Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Board
has not set any measurable objectives for implementing the Board

Diversity Policy.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates

for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship or for

proposed re-appointment of a Director:

(@) integrity;

(b) qualifications including skills, knowledge and professional
experience that are relevant to the Company's business and

corporate strategy;

() commitment to devote sufficient time in carrying out duties as a

director of the Company;

(d) Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by

the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;
(e) for a proposed appointment of an INED, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the

independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

(f)  in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the number

of years he/she has already served; and

(g) potential/actual conflict of interest that may create.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The
Nomination Committee may consider such other factors that may

enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of a new Director made by any Board members and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the nomination criteria set out above and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. The
Board will decide the appointment based on the recommendation of

the Nomination Committee.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall service to the Company of the retiring Director
who wishes to stand for re-election at the general meeting, including
the attendance of Board and Board committee meetings, and the level
of participation and performance on the Board during his/her term.
The Nomination Committee will also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the nomination criteria set
out above. The Nomination Committee will make recommendation
to the Board and the Board will then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the

general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference

in line with the CG Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Chen Zeng Guang and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (i) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two

meetings and had performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(2) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and for the six months ended 30
June 2021 and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report

and the interim report; and

(3) reviewed the training and continuous professional development

of Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Corporate Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows:

SES

3

AEEE @

BREXEEARAZETMENFFERBITNG
FEZHEBRAT

Number of Meetings

Members of Corporate Governance Committee GH¥EAREZEETRE Attended/Held
HEBITEERHK

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BTFESRLE 2/2

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang PRIgA S (B -FE - —4F N/AT3E A
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) P98 —+— HEE#Z(T)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEEELE 2/2

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva MWEIULE (H-FE_-—F 2/2
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) UH —+— HEEEFE)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial EEHMEHRZEE

Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows for such financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial

statements for the Year on a going concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

The fee payable for audit services provided by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited ("McMillan Woods"), the auditor of the Company,
was approximately HK$1,500,000 (2020: nil). On the other hand, the
fees paid for audit services provided by TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited, the
former auditor of the Company, was approximately HK$2,100,000.

The statement of McMillan Woods regarding its reporting
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on

page 53 to page 61.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the
Group, setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company, the main features including the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budgets as well.
The process includes identification, evaluation, management measures
and control and review. Meetings are held regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems, to
identify any significant management and operational risks as well as

control failings or weaknesses.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control
audit function to an independent accounting firm covering the
review of key internal controls in selected areas based on key
operational, financial and compliance risks as identified under the risk
management framework and as advised by the Audit Committee and
the management. The independent accounting firm is staffed with
persons with relevant qualifications and experience. They reported
directly and primarily to the Audit Committee and assist the Board
in monitoring and managing the risks and internal controls of the
Group. They also planned their internal audit schedules in consultation
with, but independently of the management. The Audit Committee
reviewed the activities of the independent accounting firm on a regular
basis, including the overseeing and monitoring of the implementation
improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal controls

within the Group.

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in
internal controls and recommendations for areas of improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee. Following the receipt
of such recommendations, the Company has fully implemented
the recommendations to further strengthen the risk management
framework and internal control system during 2021. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that there were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified during the Year
which might affect Shareholders. It concluded that an adequate
and effective internal control system is maintained to safeguard the

Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the internal control audit function and the Audit
Committee considers that the internal control audit function is

adequately resourced.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provision (as defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong).

Auditor’s Qualified Opinion

The auditor of the Company had issued a qualified opinion on the
consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. Details of the qualifications are set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on page 53 to page 61.

ENMHAErXERERAB("HEELER") was incorporated on
3 April 2001.EMIBEKERBMRAE, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) on 22 March 2021 (the
“Agreement”) to acquire from the Vendor 65% interest in the
registered capital of &% E for a cash consideration of RMB5
million. The then major assets of &2 & were certain commercial
properties (the “Properties”) located in Guangzhou. The Company
has a plan to redevelop the Properties into a boutique hotel with
approximately 70 guest rooms and 14 shops of approximately 2,290
square metres. As at the date of completion of the Agreement, the
remaining 35% interests in &R were held as to 25% by the
Vendor and 10% by another PRC citizen, an independent third party.

(a) Potential impact on the Company

Based on the financial information obtained, the carrying value of
accounting for FE & & as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss under HKFRS 9 and equity method under HKAS 28
shall be HK$6,013,000 and HK$4,932,000 respectively. The Audit
Committee assessed and has a view that the financial impact on
the method of accounting for # & 2 & did not have a significant
impact to the profit and loss and the financial position of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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o

EXERWRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Qualified Opinion (CONTINUED)

(b) Management’s position and basis on major judgmental

(c)

areas and the difference of view between the
management and the auditor

During the course the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company was unable to obtain
sufficient financial information for the Company to consolidated
the results, assets and liabilities of &2 & into the financial
statements of the Company. In addition, the Company could not
reach a consensus with the other two shareholders of ¥ &R
on the development plan of the properties held by #1 & 2% & and
did not manage to change the authorised representative G& A
) of B1E R The Company could not exercise control nor has
significant influence over B &2 &, it would be more appropriate
to account for the investment in B1&2[& as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
instead of an associate accounted for under equity method of
accounting in the financial statement of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2021.

Audit Committee’s view towards the modifications,
Audit Committee and management’s position
concerning major judgmental areas

The Audit Committee assessed and agreed with management’s
position on the accounting method of investment in ¥ 25 in
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2021.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Qualified Opinion (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Audit Committee’s view towards the modifications,
Audit Committee and management’s position
concerning major judgmental areas (CONTINUED)

With regards to the audit qualification, (i) the Audit Committee
communicated with the Auditor in detail during the meeting
on 29 July 2022; (i) the Audit Committee also reported the
situation to the Board during the Board meeting on the same
date; (iii) the Audit Committee and the Board both agreed that
the matter is non-recurring the qualified opinion shall not have
any impact on the results of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2022 and the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 upon completion of the agreement to
dispose B E # & and the recovery of the advance made to &

258, and (iv) neither the Company’s corporate governance, nor

the impartiality of the Board and management, was impaired.

Company's plans to address the modifications

A disposal agreement was entered into by the Company and
a third party independent to the Company for the disposal
of the Company's 65% interest held in BZ 3 E after 31
December 2021 and prior to the date of this report. In addition,
the Company has mutually agreed with B1225E whereas £
ZE R shall repay in full the RMB32,748,000 (equivalent to
HK$39,297,000) by instalments by the end of 2022. Up to the
date of this report, approximately RMB15,440,000 has been

settled by B1 & 2 & to the Company.

The Company is in the opinion that the modifications shall not
have any impact on the results of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2022 and the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 upon completion of the

disposal agreement and the recovery of the advance.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with no fixed dividend

payouts. The actual dividend that the Board may recommend or declare

in respect of any particular financial year or period is subject to a

number of factors and at the discretion of the Board.

The Board will take into account the following factors when

considering the payment of dividends:

(a)

(9)

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

the level of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity

and the relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by

the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future

expansion plans;
general economic conditions, and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

any other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restrictions under

Bermuda laws and the Bye-Laws.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The former Company Secretary, resigned with effect from 7 March
2022, was an employee of the Company. During the Year, the former
Company Secretary had complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lo Kam
Tai, currently a director of a corporate professional service firm in
Hong Kong, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
on 7 March 2022. Mr. Lo Kam Tai is not a full time employee of the
Company, the primary contact person whom Mr. Lo Kam Tai shall
be contacted in respect of company secretarial matters was Mr. Tam

Chung Sun, chairman of the Company and his delegates.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out formal channels of communication with

Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company's

website at www.gbadynamic.com.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively
communicate with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the

opportunity of asking questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and

on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external auditor
are available at the annual general meetings of the Company to

answer Shareholders’ questions.
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EERERIRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. To the extent the requisite information
of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders may at any time
send enquiry(ies) to the Board in writing by mail to the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit
2209, 22nd Floor, Tower 2, Ever Gain Plaza, 88 Container Port Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the

Company Secretary or by email to info@gbadynamic.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
registered Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders in accordance with the requirements set out in the

Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws.

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as

requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half (50%) of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in

which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either
(i) any number of registered Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting of
the Company to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than one
hundred (100) of such Shareholders, can submit a requisition in writing

to the Company:
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

(@) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal
for election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is

intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may
consist of one or several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of resolution or not less than one week
before the general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided
that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange
with the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual

general meeting or circulating the statement for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or the statement will not be circulated for the general

meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company's website at www.gbadynamic.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’s Memorandum of

Association and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The directors of the Company (”Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2021 ("Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and trading
of securities. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 1 to the consolidation financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages

62 and 63 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (“Board”) has resolved not to recommend a

final dividend for the Year (2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group's business that have occurred since the end of
the financial year 2021 and a discussion on future development in
the Group's business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 2 to 7 respectively of this annual report. Also, details
of financial risks are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. The aforesaid discussions form part of this report of the

Directors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages from time to
time. The Group achieves this through rational resources utilisation
and compliance with applicable environmental laws and practices of
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions
and employment. The Group continues to improve the environmental
performance as an integral and fundamental part of the business

strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report has been
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing

Limited and the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated
and provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence
of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group's business where the Group is

operating.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. During the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its key stakeholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain

good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on

page 195 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds

for believing that:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2021
were approximately HK$1,557,600,000 (2020: HK$1,570,800,000).

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are

set out on page 196 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director)
Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022)
Mr. Liu Hao
(resigned with effect from 3 March 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang

(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws"”) and code provision A.4.2 (subsequently rearranged and
renumbered as B.2.2) of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (”Stock Exchange”), Mr. Lai Tsz Wah and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing,
Albert shall retire from office by rotation at the 2022 annual general
meeting of the Company (“2022 AGM") and, being eligible, have

offered themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. Ho Chuk
Man, James, who was appointed by the Board as an executive Director
with effect from 22 April 2022 and Mr. Chen Zeng Guang, who was
appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 22 April 2022, shall hold office until the 2022 AGM and,

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2022
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duty of their respective offices or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group

during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option scheme
("Scheme”) which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition
to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early

termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any
other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption of the
Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains an
approval from Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit so refreshed
must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of refreshment by Shareholders. Nevertheless,
the maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and not yet
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company

from time to time.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
options available for granting by the Company under the Scheme was
78,921,104, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of further options above

this limit shall be subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in 12-month

period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue; and

(i)  having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of each grant in excess of
HK$5 million;

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case will

not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of

grant, which must be a trading day;

(ii)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of

grant.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the movements of the share options under the Scheme  AZAREEN » ZTEIBETHERE Z S8):E

during the Year were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EFTHRS
B A0 1 8

BUF

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise

1 January during during during 31 December Date of price

Eligible participant 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2021 Grant per share Exercise period

RZEZ—§
RIBZ-f +ZA8

—B—B REEER RFEER RIEER  =+-H BRITER

RERSEE W R 1T 1E i 7 /KM HRGE i =k BT 718

Directors

%

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-
(resigned with effect 23.4.2022
from 22 April 2022)

EIERY
(B-EZ_#1H
Z+ZRE#E)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-
Albert 23.4.2022

REELE

Mr. Sin Chi Fai 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-

23.4.2022

/ﬁ/u\ﬁ%i

Employee(s) 500,000 S S - 500,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-

23.4.2022

BT

Other eligible 32,000,000 S - (6,000,000) 26,000,000 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-
participants 23.4.2022

HtaBERSAE

Total 34,000,000 - - (6,000,000) 28,000,000

3t

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BEEERMUESFZ2ZHE

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, b Ex TBERGRESHE) ) —EIPTIREE I » A
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries FERN AN RETEHBAS EES T

a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire FRAIZH NEEE T EINE AN ST
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the HitsE ABRE B MpESMERS-

Company or any other body corporate.

BeRENEERARAR
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company

EFZkin HEKRNDRES

EmXE

A_E_—FE+_A=Z+—H BEREA
AREFAERIE (EEEESKPEKRK
Bl (T8 5 R AR E &A1) SBXVER) 2 B 15 ~ 48
RARMD R ESTHEERIESES RIS KRGS
32 BFEFEZELMATE & iRE L
TIRAMEE+ 2 EMBITAZERETESR
SEESFR (MREFR)) BREEAARARK
MRz R R ABT

RAERBRBKRERREZEE

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
Capacity/Nature of Number of underlying of the
Name of Director interest shares held shares held Total Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
BEAE
ESE ! B&fThktz
EEHE g1/ Rt E Fris iR & B RiP&E b BmaEatt
(Hizt1) (Hz#2)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah Beneficial owner 147,663,250 - 147,663,250 18.71%
BTERE BEalEEA
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (resigned Beneficial owner
with effect from 22 April 2022) - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
BEULE (B-F-_F17 BanlEEA
Z+ZHERA)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert Beneficial owner = 500,000 500,000 0.06%
BEELE BHERAA
Mr. Sin Chi Fai Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
AEERE BEnlEEA
Notes: Bzt

1. All Directors’ interests in the underlying shares of the Company were
in respect of the share options granted by the Company on 24 April
2017. Details of the share options are set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

2. Based on 789,211,046 issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during
the Year or existed at the end of the Year except for the share options

as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any transactions,
which constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESSES

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

During the Year, none of the Directors is considered to have interests in
business which compete or are likely to compete, directly or indirectly,

with the businesses of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMATRES R
HRERMDZEm AR

S ZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H RESR
RHABEGAIE336G BT EEZ BRMATR
8 BEUIA TR EAT RN RERERG
ZRBERKBWT

Long positions in the shares of the Company RAERBROZEE
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Capacity/ Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes  Nature of interest shares held the Company
HEARBET
R ATE Mizx B #EEME FRERINEE RAZBHABSLE
China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") 1 Interest of controlled 48,660,424 6.17%
corporation
ZEEEED
Cosmos Regent Ltd. 1 Beneficial owner 43,325,554 5.49%

BHEAA
Note:

(1) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the
Company through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Cosmos Regent Ltd. and Million Good Limited, which held
43,325,554 shares of the Company and 5,334,870 shares of the
Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.
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(1) CELE#BMEN 2 EME/A E]Cosmos Regent
Ltd. & Million Good Limited (D BIFA
43,325,554 A QBB 1D 55,334,870
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in information of Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the date of the 2021 interim report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s provident fund schemes are set out in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the applicable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group'’s five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the

total value of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this

annual report.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the Year (2020:
Nil).
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 39 of this annual

report.

AUDITOR

TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited (“TANDEM"), which was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, has resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 13 January 2022. Yongtuo
Fuson CPA Limited (“Yongtuo”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 13 January 2022 to fill the casual vacancy
arising from the resignation of TANDEM. Yongtuo has resigned as
auditor of the Company with effect from 19 May 2022. McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan Woods") was appointed
as auditor of the Company with effect from 23 May 2022 to fill the
casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Yongtuo and to hold
office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company.

McMillan Woods will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the 2022 AGM. Having approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution for the re-
appointment of McMillan Woods as auditor of the Company will be

proposed at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

TAM CHUNG SUN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 July 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
REEREHNEZXRARAHF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greater
Bay Area Dynamic Growth Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
62 to 194, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion" section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL BAETER S

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Qualified opinion

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss for an unlisted equity
investment in EMHHEPHXERERAE ("HMBER") amounted
to RMB5,011,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,013,000)
pursuant to a shares transfer agreement entered into with an
independent third party of the Group (the "Equity Investment”) in
Z 2B amounted

to RMB32,748,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,297,000)

2021. The Group also recognised an advance to £

pursuant to an advance agreement (the “Advance Agreement”)
entered in 2021, which was included in “trade and other receivables”

as at 31 December 2021.

Having consideration of our knowledge obtained in the audit
relating to the Equity Investment, Advance Agreement and financial
information of & & E, we observed that (i) the Group owns 65%
equity interest in BE &, (ii) the Group has no assignment of
HEEE; and (iii) the Group is

3. The assessment of whether the

director on the board of directors in
one of the major creditors of £}
Group exercise significant influence over #2 2£& involves significant
judgements made by management, to conclude the classification of
the Equity Investment in the consolidated financial statements of the

Group as at 31 December 2021.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Qualified Opinion (CONTINUED)
Qualitied opinion (CONTINUED)

As at the date of approval of this report, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the validity, commercial
substance and business rationale of the abovementioned transactions
that led to the (i) classification of the Equity Investment as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
or interest in associate in accordance with HKAS 28 for the year ended
31 December 2021; and (ii) measurement of the Equity Investment at
fair value under HKFRS 9 or equity method under HKAS 28. And there
were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the abovementioned transactions were free
from material misstatement. Accordingly, we issued a qualified opinion
on the consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2021.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL BAETER S

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, together with the judgements involved
in determining the fair value.

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed complex
for commercial use located in the PRC. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying value of the Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$22,000,000 and a decrease in fair value of HK$33,483,000 has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year.

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by the Valuer using income capitalisation
approach.

Details of the valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
the valuation are disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuation of investment properties are dependent on
certain inputs, including market rent and capitalisation rate.

Our procedures in relation to the evaluation of the appropriateness of
the valuation of investment properties included:

—  Evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity of the
Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the Valuer's scope of
work;

—  Reviewing the valuation report issued by the Valuer and
understanding from management and the Valuer the valuation
basis, methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;

- Evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data including
the term rent, market rent and capitalisation rate used by the
Valuer; and

—  Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties that resulted from
the valuation was reasonable.

We consider that the Group’s valuation of investment properties is
supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed a

qualified opinion on these statements on 30 April 2021.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL BAETER S

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

EEMGAMBRRAKENS
£

BMBREER) REB(ABRA)BIIKE
EXRBHRABMPENGEEMBERE LY
HBAAEREUHFRENBEAFETAR
HEFHERMENNBERERRAPIBHA
BEHIEF-

ERFEERSYBRERR  EF8 5N
EERFBECENRE LEERBER TIKE
HFEEEARNTR URERFEEE
~EtERC RFEFAEER BSEEBS
FEEEE JRBEEMBERNEAS R

MR e

BR

i

AT EEHELRZEENHY TRITE
E BEENMBRIBENEE-

\

HEEMTLZ 5t 4R & M B R K I
BEE

RANER RHEAHBREEEREST
TFE B B AE o 5 R T B BN MY B RSB AR R
REAEREP L HADERERORBED
RE-RMER BTEERSRMER
TR e At iR o RAPIA R ARE 2 B
HEMEMATAEEAEIREZAAS
BoABREESKENRE BFARS
BB(EBBH RN RTHES ER—B
A S8 558 T 77 7E B 48 BE 38 3 o SH 3R B o L
FEREE SRS MR A BB EMER
REMERTEL EEEHBREEBER
RIS IR RAA(E VAT EOATE BB RABOE
BRI PRI E A o



Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL BAETER S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560

Hong Kong, 29 July, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o EmREMEEN @R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H§EZ T _—F+_HA=+—HILEE

62

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
T —F B
M 5 FHAT FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Revenue WA 5 79,067 67,156
Cost of sales & A A (38,683) (55,823)
Gross profit EF 40,384 11,333
Other income, gains and losses, net HAaW A~ W R B5 187358 7 28,162 12,336
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR 2 W 15,045 55,685
Impairment loss on property, ME--BBERREZ
plant and equipment BEEE 16 - (28,992)
Loss on fair value changes of KREMENTEEEE
investment properties k518 19 (33,483) (37,342)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DHEX (327) (284)
Administrative and other TEREMESE
operating expenses (84,699) (78,521)
Finance costs R Rl A 8 (3,330) (1,762)
Loss before tax FRIR ARS8 (38,248) (67,547)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigi (=) iK% 9 (22) 9
Loss for the year from continuing FEREEH2
operations TEEEE (38,270) (67,538)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Loss for the year from ERIEKREERE
discontinued operation rEFEEEE 10 - (15,892)
Loss for the year TEERIE (38,270) (83,430)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) BRIRBEHMBEUKZE
after tax: (FAsR)
Items that may be reclassified HEOGEEN T EERm
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on BB BIINEBRRELE
translation of foreign operations PERAEXE 10,310 16,455
Exchange differences reclassified i ﬁ%ﬂﬁf% T@%%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ
to profit or loss upon disposal of b RERE
subsidiaries - (19,153)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) rEEHME2AEKRR BEIX)
for the year 10,310 (2,698)
Total comprehensive expenses AEETHBAZLEE
for the year (27,960) (86,128)

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raEmkEMEERR@E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—¥_—fF “ETEF
M 5 FHAT FET
Loss for the year attributable to: BTHALTEEREERIS !
Owners of the Company i NNETEZZ= N
Loss for the year from the HEREEE
continuing operations KEERE (33,410) (57,440)
Loss for the year from the BARIEKREERE 2
discontinued operation REEEBEE - (14,208)
(33,410) (71,648)
Non-controlling interests JEER I E
Loss for the year from the REREXEE 2
continuing operations KEERIE (4,860) (10,098)
Loss for the year from the BRIEREER
discontinued operation KEEFIBE - (1,684)
(4,860) (11,782)
(38,270) (83,430)
Total comprehensive expenses for the HTIATEEETEERZE
year attributable to: RIS 48%E :
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZZ= DN (21,359) (70,738)
Non-controlling interests FEER (6,601) (15,390)
(27,960) (86,128)
HK$ HK$
HTT BT
Loss per share from continuing and FESEEBEREERLEEKEE
discontinued operations EB2z28REBIE
Basic and diluted BEAR R #EE 15 (0.04) (0.09)
Loss per share from continuing FEREEBE28REBIE
operations
Basic and diluted BEARK#EE 15 (0.04) (0.07)
RUERE N BERERAT

20214E %R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR E M TFAINIUERR

At 31 December 2021 R ZE_-_—F+_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBEZ—& AR EF
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
s FAT FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME KB RERE 16 189,993 211,996
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 812 2,609
Financial asset at fair value through BEEnEATEEREZ
profit or loss TREE 18 6,013 -
Investment properties LB 19 22,000 55,000
218,818 269,605
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =8 20 865 908
Trade and other receivables B 5 M EMEBUWIRRR 21 70,043 36,088
Investments held for trading FIEEBEZRE 22 - 116
Bank balance and cash RITHEGNRIRS 23 1,782,734 1,813,337
1,853,642 1,850,449
Assets classified as held for sale PDEAFEHEEE - 2,951
1,853,642 1,853,400
Current liabilities mENERE
Trade and other payables B 5 Mk EHMETIRR 24 46,559 36,911
Interest-bearing borrowing TEMEE 25 22,000 22,000
Tax payables FE I R 18 18,114 18,113
Lease liabilities HEEaR 26 956 1,863
Contract liabilities BHNEE 27 660 2,030
88,289 80,917
Liabilities associated with assets B EAREREEE
classified as held for sale BRENEE - 1,376
88,289 82,293
Net current assets REEEFE 1,765,353 1,771,107
Total assets less current liabilities BEEHEERREBEAGR 1,984,171 2,040,712

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BTSN a=

At 31 December 2021 R _E_—F+_H=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZEZ—F NZETDHF
+ZA=+—HB +ZA=+—H
=2 FHET TET
Non-current liabilities ERENERE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBA B 28 20,709 24,033
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 - 871
20,709 24,904
NET ASSETS BEEE 1,963,462 2,015,808
Capital and reserves B A B 15
Share capital [N 29 7,892 7,892
Reserves B 1,779,367 1,825,112
Equity attributable to owners of the RN B AEEHER
Company 1,787,259 1,833,004
Non-controlling interests JEFERE R = 176,203 182,804
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,963,462 2,015,808

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 194 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 July

2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tam Chung Sun

Director

Lai Tsz Wah
Director

HNB2EB IR ZRAMBREEN
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR EIRERY

Em R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #lE & —

—F+B=+—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRREEAER
Share-based Non-
Share Special  Translation  payments Other Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total interests  Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bx  RAUGE  ESRE MRAREE  HtEE  RHER At FEREZ  EGEE
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TER TEn TEn TEn
(note a) (note b)
(H3ta) (izb)
At 1 January 2020 RZEZ%5%-F-H 7892 2,019,055 65,960 11,608 (70,319) (110,724) 1,923,472 174,520.00 2,097,992
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - (71,648) (71,648) (11,782) (83,430)
Other comprehensive income/ FEEHMEENE/ (§%)
(expenses) for the year:
exchange differences arising REBINEBREEZ
on translation of EREB
foreign operations - - 12,402 - - - 12,402 4,053 16,455
exchange differences reclassified REENBAAEENIEE
to profit o loss upon Ba/ERER
disposal of subsidiaries - - (11,492) - - - (11,492) (7,661) (19,153)
Total comprehensive income/ rEE2ERE/ (%) 48
(expense) for the year - - 910 - - (71,648) (70,738) (15,390) (86,128)
Lapse of share options BRELY - - - (4,570) - 4,570 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - - - - - - 23,674 23,674
Dividends recognised as BAADRZRE (HzE14)
distribution (note 14) - - - - - (19,730) (19,730) - (19,730)
At 31 December 2020 RZ2Z%%£+-B=+-H 7892 2,019,055 66,870 7,038 (70,319) (197,532) 1,833,004 182,804 2,015,808
At 1 January 2021 RZ%Z-%-F-H 7892 2,019,055 66,870 7,038 (70,319) (197,532) 1,833,004 182,804 2,015,808
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - (33,410) (33,410) (4,860) (38,270)
Other comprehensive income/ FEEHMRENE/ (§%)
(expenses) for the year:
exchange differences arising BRERINEBREEL
on translation of ERER
foreign operations - - 12,051 - - - 12,051 (1,741) 10,310
Total comprehensive income/ AEERERE/ (B%) 48
(expense) for the year - - 12,051 - - (33,410) (21,359) (6,601) (27,960)
Lapse of share options BRELY - - - (1,254) - 1,254 = = -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - (24,386) - (24,386) - (24,386)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-F+2A=t-8 782 201905 78921 S84 (94705)  (229688) 1787259 176203 1963462

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{E —_&—

Notes:

(a)

Special reserve represents the contributed surplus of the Company
arising from: (i) the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in prior years; (ii) reduction in share capital during prior
years; and (iii) reduction in share premium in December 2019. The
reserve is available for distribution under The Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda.

Acquisition of additional interest in an entity that is already controlled
by the Group is accounted for as equity transaction. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid that are recognised directly in
equity.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|v'R IE@/)ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE
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2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
B —F 5=
TFHT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Loss for the year from continuing FEREXHE 2 AFERE
operations (38,270) (67,538)
Loss for the year from discontinued BRITREERE 2 AFEEBE
operation - (15,892)
(38,270) (83,430)
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation of property, M KRB RREZIE
plant and equipment 28,984 29,260
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEEZITE 1,809 31,180
Interest income FEUWA (20,368) (20,133)
Finance costs EE=ynN 3,330 2,952
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BBREZEZE
plant and equipment 8 5 15
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT ZWE (12,038) (55,685)
Impairment loss BIERTE
— property, plant and equipment —E B RRE - 28,992
— right-of-use assets —EREEE - =
— other receivables — HAthfE U BR TR - 10,500
Write-off of trade receivables 134 B 5 FEULBR R - =
Loss on fair value changes of FIEEEREZ AT EE
investments held for trading )2 E1E (20) 73
(Gain) Loss on fair value changes of KEMEZ ANFEBEEZS
investment properties C&EF) B8 33,483 37,342
Income tax (credit)/expense FriSf (&%) B 22 9)
Operating cash flows before movements EBEEwEFHAIZ
in working capital %%@rfiﬁﬁuui (3,063) (18,943)
Change in inventories EE&E#E) 43 584
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 K E th FE UR BR =R Bh) (33,955) (18,759)
Change in investments held for trading RIEEBEREEH) 136 -
Change in trade and other payables B 5 REMENIRRESD) (959) (16,224)
Change in contract liabilities BHaEEY (1,370) 147
Cash used in operations REXBRMAZRE (39,168) (53,195)
PRC income tax (paid)/refund, net (B REZ
FREIFTISHR 3 58 (22) (12)
Net cash used in operating activities SRR ZIRE R (39,190) (53,207)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|\7I' = IE@/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H{ZE —_ZE " —F+_B=+—HILFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F TECEF
IS FAT TFET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KBRS
Interest received BUWHE 20,368 20,133
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HWEREREZ
plant and equipment Fr18™IE - 117
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥)% 43 %R H (541) (213)
Investment in financial asset at fair value RBBEREATFEETE
through profit or loss ZEREEZKRE (6,013) =
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries HE M B AR PrERIE 102 51,037
Net cash generated from KRETHMSZREFE
investing activities 13,916 71,074
FINANCING ACTIVITIES LB EE
Interest-bearing borrowing raised FEEsTEEE - 22,000
Dividends paid to owners of the Company Bf{tEAATEBEARE - (19,730)
Repayment of lease liabilities ERAEaE (1,778) (20,689)
Interest paid BERFE (3.330) (1,398)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMAZRE R (5.108) (19,817)
Net decrease in cash and RERFEEEERE
cash equivalents 2 RER (30,382) (1,950)
Cash and cash equivalents at FVRERREEEER
beginning of year 1,814,810 1,816,076
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEgFH T E (1,694) 684
Cash and cash equivalents at FRRERIREEFEFHER
end of year 1,782,734 1,814,810
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERRELEEB DM
Bank and cash balances fEﬁE’zi@% & BR 1,782,734 1,813,337
Bank balances classified as held for sale DEAFELE ZIRITLE - 1,473
1,782,734 1,814,810
BERENEERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w

ir e M B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
(the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its issued shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the businesses of hotel
operations and trading of securities. The details of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") which functional currency is Renminbi
("RMB"), the functional currency of the Company and its other
subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ and rounded to the

nearest thousands unless otherwise indicated.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2021 as mentioned below. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year

and prior years.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group’s financial statements and

amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

2.

FERAEEMBHREER (IF
AR EEN)) Z1E5]

RAFEBHERZEEBHF
HREENZEET

NAEFE AEBERMUTHEES
SR AE (TEBESTMAE)) FTEM
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BN G ST FEE RN ET KRBT
EARAUVBREED - BFHBMBRSER
BEEBVBREER ((EBHBR
SR  EBGHER ((EBIE
A1) ; R R o RN ZFE ST AR EBET
ERAVBREGEN T EERAER Gt
BE - AEBPBRROZIH UK
NEERBFTFESREHVELETARE
& o

BEYBIRSER] FREAERE
FosE BB E —EB2PEER
ZEREE3955~ BB
R R S 2R
BT EBYH
wEER BT
BBV BRSER
1658 2 1E5T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective which may be relevant to the Company:

EREREMBHREER (5
AMBREERN)) Z1E5]
()
ERMERKRERNHITER
M F5ER S 2R R HAEET

7K S B 3 SRR AP A T U AT A SR A
BRI B2 1 K E NI S8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendment to HKFRS 16
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Business Combination
— Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?
Property Plant and Equipment

— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 — 2020 cycle?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current’

Making Materiality Judgements
— Disclosure of Accounting

Policies’

Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors
— Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related
to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction’

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TSR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FERSEBMBEREER (IE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AR EEN)) Z1E5]

(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) @)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMERERERNHIEE

not yet effective (CONTINUED) MBREENREEST @

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January e R ZEZ=—F—HA—Hu%z%&MAK
2023. B9 EEHARI £ 5K o

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RIS -_F—FB—Bxz%MBE
2022. BEEHREEX -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. 8 RIZEZ—FHA—H=Hz&ME

B EE AR £ o

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REBERTETERZEEBI RME

impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be BIRYBEAAENEE -EEBA A

in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the b HiEwmAm RWZEER R KAEE

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the HRaUMBRREEEATE-

consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Lo ERRIGENELER
or

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEEHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 A MBRRZGEREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared REMBHRRDBIES B 60
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. The NRBBEMGZEEMBREGENR
consolidated financial statements include applicable Ko EMBRREBESBHER
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of SFARABZES EmRA (MTE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited M) REBRAKRAREZ
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies BERFEEE-

Ordinance.

NERBNEERARAE 73
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e M B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and investments held for trading that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16"), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in

use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (CONTINUED)

For investments held for trading and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique
that unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value
in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:
e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
ownership interest entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon

liquidation.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or

a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal
group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the

date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant

subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set

out in respective sections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays), the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance

obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

EEMBRRZEHEER
FETHHRER®

3.2 FEFGEEEK @

KEERGHZHKA (@@

GHEEEFERUBRARS
MEAENETN AREAEEHE
BOEP A MR HIFESK
e BNEEZRENGEHRES
BMBREEETRET - BR
EWRRIE S EBBWERAENE
R BB REEIRIES
ERREHES -

GHEEEFERRERER K
BAE (RERNRWEAE - mA
BEFERERNRBHEE-

HE-5HNRBEZGNEERS
NEaBRERFREEARKES -

it

AZIEENETHEH (B1F
PERZ1E)

MEF-—EBEULBOERE WMRE
RRHEMRBRBEETBEEZ
BE)MEN ~EENEEET
EEEERRZERDIKRERE

BHEE-

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R

81



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)
(CONTINUED)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to

the customer.

Overtime revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the goods or services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services

promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's

performance in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group's performance completed to date,

the Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the

Group has the right to invoice.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

3.

EEMBRRZEHEER
FETHHER®

3.2 FEGEEEK @

AZIEBYETNEA (BF
AR Z1E) (@)

fEarEmaRBEBNSERY
BERZEBEERSNMRILFE
EeHiEAEERAENE mIR
BEBELETFTERHNER H—1&
BEREETREERER FEEK
REENEAETHE UERK
NEEEABENEEZRZER
fz Bk 7 £ [ TR AR T 2K BE BO 7S SR SR
REEETFTERARBIANRE
E LR

BEPFRImESR Mz - TR EITRAE
FEEHE

EHHE

TERITENEREEERE
PEStE EREZSRILERAER
EENERIRBEAEREGAT
Az RBEERIBRBTNEEER
EEH 8 DU RFEED M » bR =
RERAEEMITEB EmARBIE
IS ERRIR -

ERATREZS HEAEEAFRI
BEEAEREAEREZSER
ENZBEEBIRE BIAE
BEUAEERERAERNEH
BB U ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FETHHRER®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEGEHEE @

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)
(CONTINUED)

RZIEBHETNEA (B
ARG 1E) (@

Contract costs = )%

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract RIZEABIIEE fL K

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs REGANEBERAREAERS
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer REEREAMEENRAE WK

that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been

obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the

customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and

conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#r e A R R T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. LG8 BRRZEUNEER

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FETHHRER®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

3.2 FEFGEEEK @

Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e M B IR MR

N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to

fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary

items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

3.

EEMBRRZEHEER
FETHHER®

3.2 FEGEEEK @

HE @@
FEEEHHEN (8)
TEEELIE
ERAREBSIFSBKEEH
BB ERFIRAK LA
ATEE B HREREREZ
ATBEFSZBERES A
AZ S ZBIVEE IR

s
RirHESBENEEBTRZME
BERE WX EBHRZERY

EEEH AR GME) - IR H
HEAZ EXIGE R - RS H
ERE DUMNBIIBEZEKIBER R
ERBRAZEXREMRE - LIMNE
SIEL I ATEEARZIFEE
BEE BEEATEEHHERZ
EXREIIHRE  LUMNBIELIZE
ERASHEZIFERBERTE
WiE-

EEEREARENHREEKIE
BEEZEREZERELEHBAE

Bm sl o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period which they are incurred as the Group does not have

any qualified assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, gains and losses,

net”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

The obligations for contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group had no forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEEHER@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEGEHEE @
Employee benefits (CONTINUED) 1ES #5 7 (&)
Retirement benefit costs (CONTINUED) BIEFIRE ()

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group’s entities established in the PRC are
required to participate in defined contribution retirement
plans organised by local governments. Contributions to
these plans are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and
other than these monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to

its employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for wages and salaries accruing to

employees after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payments reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share

options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payments reserve will be transferred to accumulated

losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e M B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over

time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date

of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued

operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property

is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEGFHR @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEGEHEE @
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and Y= ES R R IR AE I
right-of-use assets BEZRE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit

or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group's

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and

collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. LG8 BRRZEUNEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FETHHE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

3.2 FEGEHEE @

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEZHHE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEFHHHE @
25T A (&)
LHEE (B

EMEEZDERERE (B

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit-impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include

trade and other receivables and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the

“other income, gains and losses, net” line item.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVTPL

included investments held for trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AH =
ﬁT RS R R MYEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE _—F+ZA=+—HLEFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %?éﬂ#?%ﬁi%z"ﬁ%%ﬁ&
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTETHHE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

32 TEFFHEE ®

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12— month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

RAFS IR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #lE & —

—F+B=+—HLEFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Group

compares the risk of a default occurring on the

financial instrument as at the reporting date with the

risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument

as at the date of initial recognition. In making this

assessment, the Group considers both quantitative

and qualitative information that is reasonable and

supportable, including historical experience and

forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(M)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices

for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(M)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low
risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. All financial
assets, except for trade and other receivables, are

determined to have low credit risk.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

z.—‘_—- P
wh [

RAFS IR AR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (CONTINUED)
(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as

forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Nature of financial instruments;

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to

share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment

is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

EEMBRRZEHEER
FETHHER®

3.2 FEGEEEK @

o =NC:)
EHMEE (&
=B E R E (B)

(v EHEEHRENAERER
(&)
DHETEREIRE TR
DrEREERRMHEERSR
BUEERBREME-

FMEWAZEREENRE
MEFE FFEMEEZEE
EERE AR B WAZER
EEREEMESE-

rEEBBREMATHT
BENREENREDERER
BWRESEE EE S R EM
FEURBRTRFR SN » HIB B R IEH
HARFESDARME R o

RIS T B E

rEREREEMELEREMNE
ZENENERR  URHAESRE
ENREEEMARZERED
REkEORERTE—BER 7
BRIFEIEMEE-

RELEDRBIEREFEZS
MEER EERAERADHRE
WREBZENBZZ8 N B

=5
E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ol RZEINEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FETHTHRER®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

3.2 FEFGEEEK @

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowing are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Related parties (CONTINUED)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to a parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties (CONTINUED)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to Group's executive directors for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various types of services provided and activities carried out

and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for hotel properties

The Group has developed certain criteria in making judgements
whether the hotel properties are qualified and recognised in
property, plant and equipment. The directors of the Company
consider whether the ancillary services are significant in the hotel
operation. Some hotel properties comprises a portion that is held
to earn rental income, and another portion that is held for use
in the operation of hotel business. If the portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services. Judgement is made in an individual
property basis to determine whether the above criteria are
so significant that property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{E —_&—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of- use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject to
greater uncertainties in the current year due to the uncertainty on

how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were HK$189,993,000
and HK$812,000 (2020: HK$211,996,000 and HK$2,609,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses of
HK$nil (2020: HK$28,992,000 and HK$nil) in respect of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets that have been
recognised respectively. Details of the impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed
in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

Depreciation of hotel properties

Hotel properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with consideration of the remaining term of
the leases and the remaining years of co-operative period. Their
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s hotel properties. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the rate at which the hotel properties

are depreciated and the carrying amount of the hotel properties.
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R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. The
determination of the fair value involves certain estimation of
market conditions and assumptions of the investment properties
which are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumption in the valuation are reflective of the current market

conditions.

Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of loss reported in

profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties is HK$22,000,000 (2020: HK$55,000,000)
after taking into account the loss on fair value changes of

investment properties of HK$33,483,000 (2020: HK$37,342,000).

8 52 2 5t H Ef B (i 5t A BEER
REZETEFRKE @

Gt FEABR R Z T EXRIR

(&)
REYFEZ1E1E

REVEDRBE LT X GEMETZ
BEMRATEEI KR AFEEZE
I RETHRES REREVEFE
Bz ARAENENIGEEMHRRMEE
190

BREERER  FAREFEIFRA
B MSMEEZRRRRERT TN

ZERRZEHRENAFEFBREYE
NTEEZLEEH RN BEPIIRZ
BIRSREFHAAERE -

A _E_—F+_HB=+—H &
SAREEVMEZAFTEEEHES
833,483,000 (Z T T4 .
37,342,000%7T) 8 > AEBEKR B ER
HE{E#22,000,0008m (T2 2F&F !
55,000,00038 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

4.

RA TSR MY 5t

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$631,445,000 (2020:
HK$617,382,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future, which is a key source
of estimation uncertainty especially in the current year given
the significant uncertainty on the potential disruption of the
Group's hotel operations due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material recognition
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in

profit or loss for the period in which such a recognition takes

place.

Impairment of other receivables

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12m
ECL. Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, general conditions, internal credit ratings and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of other receivables was HK$65,629,000 (2020:
HK$31,625,000), after taking into account the impairment losses
of HK$nil (2020: HK$10,500,000).
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R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i ZE T - —F+ 8 =+—HIFE

REVENUE

The Group owns/leases and operates hotels and provides

hotel management and related services. The Group also owns

investment properties for property rental business. Revenue

recognised in the consolidated financial statements during the

year are as follows:

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

HZ A

rEBEERS /THERKEHEE > WRMH
BIEEERBBARS -AEETEER
BEMERDERERET -FARKEY
BHRERANED WAL ¢

REERENZBRANSE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEZ—F§ 2T TH
Continuing operations FHBIREER FHT FHET
Hotel operations BIE T
— Hotel rooms —BIEER 23,690 26,884
- Food & beverage — B8 7,976 8,622
Revenue from contract with customers HERGHWA 31,666 35,506
Securities trading EAEE - -
Rental income from leases REMEZHAEWA 47,401 31,650
Dividend income SN - =
Total revenue ABUTA 79,067 67,156
Revenue from contract with customers by B Emisal o 2 Bl
geographical markets BEEEHIWA
— the PRC —HHE 31,666 35,506
Timing of recognition of revenue from BEEAHWANESEE
contract with customers
- At a point in time NS 7,976 8,622
— Over time — BB 23,690 26,884
31,666 35,506
Discontinued operation (note 10) BRI EE R (MsE10)
Hotel operations B IS T
- Hotel rooms —BIERR - 22,110
- Food & beverage — B8 - 654
- 22,764
Revenue from contract with customers by it misaHz
geographical markets BEEHWA
- Hong Kong —&8 - 22,764
Timing of recognition of revenue from BB A AU B HE 50 B
contract with customers
- At a point in time — BB - 654
— Over time —PERE R - 22,110
- 22,764

~~~~~~~ MRS BERERAR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers consist of

hotel rooms and food and beverage.

The transaction price of hotel rooms and food and beverage is
the amount collected from the customer for such goods and
services. The transaction price for such transactions is recorded
as revenue when the good or service is transferred or rendered to
the customer during their stay at the hotel or when the delivery is

made for food and beverage.

The Group has certain contracts that include multiple goods and
services, such as packages that bundle food and beverage and
other services with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each good or service based upon its relative
standalone selling price. The Group primarily determines the
standalone selling price of hotel rooms and food and beverage
based upon the amount that the Group charges when each is sold

separately in similar circumstances to similar customers.

The Group elects to apply the practical expedient under HKFRS
15 and does not disclose the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining obligations for contracts with an
original expected duration for one year or less or contracts for

hotel operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

5. XA @)

Leases HE
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ZEZ—F T TEF
Continuing operations FHEREER FAT FHETT
For operating leases: MEEHEMS !
Lease payments that are fixed BEBEEMR 47,401 31,650

No contingent rental is included in operating lease income.

The Group leases out various offices, warehouses, advertising

spaces, restaurants and retail stores under operating leases. The

leases typically run for an initial period of one to eight years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of

the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the

respective functional currencies of the group entities. The lease

contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee'’s

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

AT S U R 3t A LT EUA o

FERRBECEHEHEZBERAE
BEE - BEU-BBRATEE -ZFHE
—RINTBRA—ENEF-

HRFAARESUERERSBNIEE
ERsHE &R ERBEZHM
EHIMNEREE - FBE SN EE A FIER
BEERR, AR AN EBERE
BEMEREERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided and activities

carried out by the Group's operating divisions.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8

Operating Segments are as follows:

1)  Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food and beverage
services and rental income from rentals of shop units
situated in the hotels of the Group and from rentals of

investment properties; and

2)  Securities trading — trading of equity securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KEDHE @

Segment revenues and results PHEWBARES

The following is analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UM AEREBWARERRIRSHE
reportable segments: 2

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT-—F+-H=+—HLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations Operation
BRI
RECEER mEEE
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading Subtotal operations  Consolidated
BELE HHFEE Vet BELE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET THET FTET TET
Segment revenue SERA 79,067 - 79,067 - 79,067
Segment profit excluding NERA (FOENE K
depreciation of property, plantand ~ RREUREREEE
equipment and right-of-use assets, ~ #TEE ¥ E B RRH
impairment loss on property, plant — EEEE URFFEEE
and equipment and loss on fair REZNTEEZHER)
value changes of investments
held for trading 40,384 48 40,432 - 40,432
Depreciation of property, ME-BBERRENE
plant and equipment (28,984) - (28,984) - (28,984)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEERTE (1,809) - (1,809) - (1,809)
Impairment loss on property, ME RRERSERESR
plant and equipment - - - - -
Loss on fair value changes of RHEEERENTER
investments held for trading =) 3 - (20) (20) - (20)
Segment profit pag bl 9,591 28 9,619 - 9,619
Unallocated income and expenses — FHEMARETZ
Directors’ emoluments EEER (2,348)
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEWA 20,368
Loss on fair value changes of RENELNTEEZEER
investment properties (33,483)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAT 2 Wa 15,045
Central administrative costs and FRITBHEREKDE
unallocated corporate expenses M (47,448)
Loss before tax BIRRIE B (38,248)

BEFRENEERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KEDHE W
Segment revenues and results (CONTINUED) DEWARES @
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZT-EHF+_-_A=+—BHLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations Operation
B&IE
FHEREE F—E)
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading Subtotal operations Consolidated
BEERE EHBEE INE BEGE ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TER TET
Segment revenue DERA 67,156 = 67,156 22,764 89,920
Segment loss excluding depreciation DB 18 (R ELIEME 5
of property, plant and equipment RZEURGREEE
and right-of-use assets, impairment ~ #7E ¥ ¥ B R R HE
loss on property, plant and RESE URFEEE
equipment and loss on fair value REZATREEHER)
changes of investments held for
trading (16,243) (11) (16,254) 13,643 (2,611)
Depreciation of property, ME-BBERRENE
plant and equipment (28,803) - (28,803) (142) (28,945)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FBEEETE (382) - (382) (29,393) (29,775)
Impairment loss on property, ME RERZERESR
plant and equipment (28,992) - (28,992) - (28,992)
Loss on fair value changes of RHEEERENTER
investments held for trading b=l 3= = (73) (73) = (73)
Segment loss HEEEE (74,420) (84) (74,504) (15,892) (90,396)
Unallocated income and expenses — F WA RS
Directors' emoluments £ EA (3,321)
Interest income on bank deposits RITETZHEWRA 20,133
Loss on fair value changes of RENELNTEEZEER
investment properties (37,342)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBABER 55,685
Central administrative costs and FRITBME KRR DE
unallocated corporate expenses M (28,198)
Loss before tax BRiRAIEE (83,439)
1 3 2 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

KSR e
DHEWARELS @
NEBBRIESDEEE YR B
XOBMEEME  BITERZF B
ABEME AT EESHEE B
B A B 2 U3 LUR R RITE AR A &
AN EE T AT BRERE
ERREHARE R GEE 8

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.
Segment revenues and results (CONTINUED)

Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of directors’ emoluments, interest income on bank
deposits, loss on fair value changes of investment properties,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and central administrative costs
and unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment. Fike
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by UTAREERURERKCEDEZE
reportable and operating segments: EREESH
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F TE T
FET FET
Segment assets DEEE
Hotel operations B RS 261,713 240,966
Securities trading FHEE - 123
Total segment assets DEEELRE 261,713 241,089
Investment properties BEY 22,000 55,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 1,782,734 1,813,337
Assets classified as held for sale (note 10) DEAFEHEZEE (H:E10) - 2,951
Other unallocated assets HMRXDEEE 6,013 10,628
Consolidated assets FREE 2,072,460 2,123,005
Segment liabilities pak =R
Hotel operations B 48,175 41,675
Securities trading FHEE - =
Total segment liabilities DB ELREE 48,175 41,675
Tax payables FE 14 #5218 18,114 18,113
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE& B 20,709 24,033
Interest-bearing borrowing FEMEE 22,000 22,000
Liabilities associated with assets classified as DiEAFIEHEESEZ
held for sale (note 10) araE (ffsx10) - 1,376
Other unallocated liabilities HitxnEkEa’i - =
Consolidated liabilities geafl 108,998 107,197
HERENBERERAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, bank balances and cash, assets

classified as held for sale and other unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payables, deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing
borrowing, liabilities associated with assets classified as held

for sale and other unallocated liabilities.

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2021

= )
DEEEREE ®

RERDPBRAEREEDEFERD
[

FFEEENSERELCENE M
REME -RITERARES D8
REFHEZEERAMKD K
BERI &

FREEEHgEIRECENE K
EANE EERBEEE 5FEE
E DERRKFELHEEEZEREA
BREMKRDEE &R -

HthpEEF
BE_E-_—H+_-_A=+—BHLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

E.‘&%JJ:

Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading  operations Unallocated Consolidated
BEEE EHEE BELE AAE "E

HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET THET FTHET THET FTHET

Amounts included in the measure st & D MEHBEADEEE

of segment loss or segment BFstAZ A |

assets:
Addition to property, EN L IE 1

plant and equipment 541 - - - 541
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRBEZTE

plant and equipment 28,984 - - - 28,984
Depreciation of FREBEZINE

right-of-use assets 410 - - 1,399 1,809
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZE

plant and equipment B 5 - - - 5

134 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. KENHE @

Other segment information (CONTINUED) Hth28EEN @

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT-EHF+_-_A=+—BHLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BRI

Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading operations  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BELE HHEE BIELE ADE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT T

Amounts included in the measure st EDEEEAHEEE

of segment loss or segment BFst AZ A |

assets:
Addition to property, ERN £ e gl

plant and equipment 213 - - - 213
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRBEZNE

plant and equipment 28,803 - 142 315 29,260
Depreciation of ERAEBEZINE

right-of-use assets 382 - 29,393 1,405 31,180
Impairment loss on property, ME - BBRREEZ

plant and equipment REEE 28,992 - - - 28,992
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERLEL

plant and equipment B 15 - - - 15
Geographical information Hh 35 5
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. AEBESBERPELE £
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers BERAEEKRBINBER ZWANER
is presented based on the location of operations. Information ThiZiR M BE 2 5 o B R A E B IE R
about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the BEZEHNLEREEMEMEMLNESR
geographical location of the assets. o

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
Geographical information (CONTINUED)

o)

e e
= )

g & E @)

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

REMEBEEZWA JEREEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- TZ2T2HF ZTZ—F ZZTTEZHF
TF#ET THT TF#T TH7T

Discontinued hotel B IEKEAREER

operation — Hong Kong —&58 - 22,764 - -

Continuing hotel operations 3344 & A 5 £ 75
— The PRC — R 79,067
Continuing securities trading FEKEHHEEHES

operations — Hong Kong &8 -

67,156 218,818 267,755

= - 1,850

79,067

89,920 218,818 269,605

Information about major customers

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group for both years.

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7.

EREEERZEN
B B » 3 (T 10 B — 7 5 P E R
A A 7 S AR M 35 BB 1 0% ©

EAUTA ~ W am Fe B5 1575 48

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E_—F 22 HF
Continuing operations FBIREER FHT FHETT
Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of BEIREEERIR AT EE2
financial assets mandatorily measured at ZEMBEEATEBEEZS R
FVTPL — held for trading (&B18) —FH1EBE&E 20 (73)
Net foreign exchange loss SIS 1E 3 B (8) (24)
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZHBEWA 20,368 20,133
Other services income HAMARBUA 6,500 1,000
Sundry income HEIEU A 1,287 1,147
Loss on disposal of property, HEYHE HERREZEE
plant and equipment (5) (15)
Government grant IEISEEEN - 668
Impairment losses on other receivables HM IR 2 BE 18 - (10,500)
28,162 12,336

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$668,000 in respect of COVID-19
related subsidies under the Employment Support Scheme provided
by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

1 3 6 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEMZA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E=Z—F ZECEF
Continuing operations FEREER FHET FHETT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZAE 1,680 208
Interest on interest-bearing borrowing FEEEZFE 1,650 1,554
3,330 1,762
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9. FIIEIRRX  (E%)
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T —F —BCERE
Continuing operations FEREET FHET FHET
Current tax: BUHEAFRIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R IR - 963
PRC withholding tax FRE FENR - 6,850
Under provision in prior years: BEFERBEBETRE !
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE 2RISR - 98
Deferred tax: IRIERRIE
Current year KEE 22 (7,920)
22 )
BaRENEERBRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

I

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat

rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the years

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

PRC withholding tax represents withholding tax on the estimated
capital gain tax arising from the disposal of interest in subsidiaries

set out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=.AH
ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (CONTINUED) 9.

The tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

RS R R MY 5L

——H+ZRA=+—HLEHFE

Frigfis, (%) @

FEEZRE R HAXTEESE
m R Bt 2 E Wt & 2 PRI AT R IR AR
LI

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-—fF “ETF
FHET FHET
Loss before tax bR Al 5 18 (38,248) (67,547)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate FARMPTISIRE25% 5T E 2
of 25% (Note) RE (MfsE) (9,562) (16,887)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REMBZEEESEZWE
operating in other jurisdictions RBZ FAEMENZE 10,484 4,097
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for MMBEEN RN ZHAEZZ
tax purpose mMETE - 3,503
Tax effect of income not taxable for MIRTFEE E’]@ZE%%QZH&)\Z
tax purpose MEEE - (18,572)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERZRBEHEBZREEE - 11,566
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences EEEEWZ—HD BHEERZ
not recognised MR - 9,336
Withholding tax on disposal of subsidiaries tHEMT% NEIpA kL) - 6,850
Underprovision in prior years BEFEHBELE (900) 98
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year REEZFEREAS (ER) 22 9)
Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Msr . FREAAMMNEAREBRELR Y

rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is
substantially based is used.

FERBUMMAESZEEZTE
EEMRBREK-

RNEBRENEERARAT
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

10.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 23 November 2018, Shropshire Property Limited (“Shropshire
Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Luoyang Dinghe Electric Construction Company Limited (&
PRAMEHRZAERAFD) (the

and purchase agreement (the

"Purchaser”) entered into a sale
“Disposal Agreement”), pursuant
to which Shropshire Property has conditionally agreed to dispose
to the Purchaser of its entire equity interest in Luoyang Golden
Gulf Hotel Company Limited (BFFEKEKBEBRAR)
(“Luoyang Golden Gulf”), a 60% owned subsidiary of Shropshire
Property, and its subsidiary (together as the “Disposal Group”), at
a consideration of RMB61,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$68,500,000). On 22 May 2019, the Purchaser and Shropshire
Property entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
long stop date to 10 months from the date of the Disposal
Agreement, with all terms and conditions remain unchanged.
A deposit of RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,906,000) was received by the Company in November 2018
and included in “trade and other payables” (note 24) as at 31
December 2019.

The major asset of the Disposal Group was Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel situated in Luoyang in the PRC. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the Disposal Group, which was expected to be sold
within twelve months subsequent to the end of reporting period
31 December 2019, had been classified as a disposal group
held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated

statement of financial position at 31 December 2019.

On 26 February 2020, the disposal of the Disposal Group was
completed, details are set out in note 32(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(CONTINUED)

On 1 January 2021, Rosedale Hotel Group Limited (”Rosedale
Hotel Group”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Kocan
Investment Limited (“Kocan”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Rosedale Hotel Group has agreed
to dispose to Kocan of its entire equity interest in Rosedale
Park Limited (“Rosedale Park”), a 100% owned subsidiary of
Rosedale Hotel Group, at a consideration of the aggregate of
HK$1,106,300 and net current asset value of Rosedale Park at the

completion date.

The assets and liabilities attributable to Rosedale Park which are
expected to be sold within twelve months subsequent to the end
of reporting period 31 December 2020, have been classified as
a disposal company held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2020. The net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and

accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

Since the operation of Rosedale Park represents a separate major
geographical area of operations, i.e. hotel operation in Hong
Kong, it is therefore reclassified to discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with

the presentation where applicable.

10. ERIEEERT DEARF

EHEZHEHR @

S _E_—F—F—B > AR EEER
BRABINEASEEBRAR (TIARE
EIEEEE ) BKocan Investment Limited
(TKocanl) ST EEW#E - #EIL > I8
EBAHSEEEREMKocantH EH R
HEBEESEBRI100%EEZHRB AT
Rosedale Park Limited (TRosedale Park 1)
22 MRARED > AER1,106,3008 7T
J2Rosedale Parkit5ER BERZ MENE &=
=

BN _TF+"_HA=+—HR
HHEIE R+ 88 M E ZRosedale
ParkfECEERBBEDEA—BHRIE
HEZHEAR TR _IEZZF+T
B=+—BHzGaMBIRIBRNES
25 FEAHEFE L FERIEFER
HeEMEERGBRZREFE AL
b FR b ST R B 5 18 o

Hi7Rosedale Parkz &E MR FX—ERE L
Z2EFEZEME BIEBBEEETR)
At EFReiEaREMEERaRFAE
MOHEADRIEREXE LLRHEFE
BA URE25E WER) °

BEFRENEERERAT
20214E %R

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR TR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL 10. BRIEREXET DEAE
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE FHEZHEHRR @
(CONTINUED)

Profit or loss arising from the discontinued REEBRLEKEXF 21850 ¢

operation:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

—T-—F 2T HF

FHERT FHET

Revenue HEA - 22,764
Direct operating costs BE&E MK - (42,138)
Gross loss Ei8 - (19,374)
Other income and losses Hh A K E518 - 17,585
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets PRAEEERERE - =
Distribution and selling expense DIEREERS - (169)
Administrative and other operating expenses {TE & E M4 & - (12,744)
Finance costs & A A - (1,190)
Loss before tax PRI AIET IR - (15,892)
Income tax expense PSRz - =
Loss for the year from discontinued operation B4 A& 25~ AEE IR - (15,892)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: BRIEEEEF ZHRERE
2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EZ—F CTECRF

FHET FHET

Net cash inflows from operating activities KEEEFZIREMAZEEE - 9,724
Net cash inflows from investing activities BEFRH RS RA TR - -
Net cash outflows from financing activities RMEEHZIRESREFE - (13,475)
Net cash outflows B&mt F2E - (3,751)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL 10.
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Rosedale Park
as at 31 December 2020, which have been classified as held for
sale and presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position, are as follows:

iR TSR MYEE

BE T —HF+-RB=+—HLFE

BRI REETE DEARF
EHEZHEHR @

PEAF/EHEZEERER

Rosedale ParkR_ZE_ZF+_H
=S t—BHOEAFKFHELEREME
RRRRPEE 2N 2T EEERERE
R

2020

HK$'000

TECEF

FET

Inventories 8 80

Trade and other receivables 85 & EMEBWERRR 1,398

Bank balances and cash RITHEGR RIS 1,473

Assets classified as held for sale DEARTEHEZEE 2,951

Trade and other payables 85k EMEMERR 1,319

Contract liabilities aH8aE 57
Liabilities directly associated with assets PDEAREHEZEEN

classified as held for sale BEEBEEaE 1,376

The disposal was completed subsequent to the end of reporting

period on 1 January 2021.

HEEEENREMEREE D —
F—RA—Bxm°

AERENSERERAR
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

N

e,

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operations

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

1. £FAREIE

HBEEER

FAEEBNE GIA) THRE:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EZ—F ZEIZF
FHET FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and MESKBERERHITE
equipment 28,984 29,118
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERNE 1,809 1,787
Total depreciation TEEAR%E 30,793 30,905
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEM BN = 1,435 2,100
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERIATHZEERRE
expense 8,945 9,401
Employee benefits expenses BERHMEZ 29,925 30,388
Impairment loss recognised in respect of: BRAUTERENS R EEE !
— Property, plant and equipment —E KRR E - 28,992
— Other receivables —HAE AR - 10,500
Gross rental income from investment KREMEERSRARDESH
properties less negligible outgoings (FF AU A)
(included in revenue) (25,237) (15,695)
Hotel management fee BIEEEE 6,500 10,308
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

R.EFRTEERMNE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follow:

Year ended 31 December 2021

BEER LHRAUREBLEEGIRE
WAFEEERITHAHMENT ¢

BE_ZT-—H+-A=+—BHLEE

Directors’  Salaries and Retirement
fees other benefits benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HER
EENE Hihig 7 BIREF st
THET THET THET THERT
Executive directors HITESR

Mr. Tam Chung Sun (note d) EIELELE (zd) 120 - - 120
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah* BFELE 1,680 - 18 1,698
Mr. Liu Hao (note b) 2L L4 (stb) 120 - - 120
Sub-total INGE 1,920 - 18 1,938

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

LIRTEEME AN KSR EER
RBRAERZEHRREZ RS

Directors’  Salaries and Retirement
fees other benefits benefits Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek
BEEHE Hth@H BHRER Mt
FTET TAET FTHET FTAET
Independent non-executive directors BIJERITES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEIUKE 130 - - 130
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert BEELE 180 - - 180
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HERELE 100 - - 100
Sub-total INEt 410 - - 410
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown FAEIIFRITEEME RN IRE D
above were for their services as directors of the Company. FEARRNBEEFRHE R
HK$'000
F#ET
Total st 2,348

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2020

gE-—s-%

—_= =

R.EEFERITHEZME @

F+ZA=+—HLEE

Directors'’ Salaries and Retirement
fees  other benefits benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ek
EEE Hitig# RIRGER st
TET TET TET TERT
Executive directors HITES

Mr. Tam Chung Sun (note d) EIELELE (zd) 24 - - 24
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah* BFERE - 1,800 18 1,818
Mr. Liu Hao (note b) B %4 (sth) 43 - - 43
Dr. Yap, Allan (note c) BT (o) 72 - - 72
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic (note a) EREE (eta) 234 - - 234
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny (note a) ESBRsE4 (Mizta) 780 - - 780
Sub-total Mgt 1,153 1,800 18 2,971

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

LR TEEME AN RSN EER
RARFTEBZ EHATRMZ R -

Directors'’ Salaries and Retirement
fees  other benefits benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ek
BE0E Hn@R RIEF st
TET TET AT TET
Independent non-executive directors B FERITESR

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva MWEIULE 110 = - 110
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert AEELE 153 - - 153
Mr. Sin Chi Fai REERE 87 - - 87
Sub-total i\at 350 - - 350

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

LB IFRTEETME AN RSN
EERBEEMRHEZIRE -

HK$'000
TET

Total
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:
(a) Resigned with effect from 25 August 2020.

(b) Appointed with effect from 24 August 2020 and resigned with
effect from 3 March 2022.

(c) Resigned with effect from 7 August 2020.
(d) Appointed with effect from 19 October 2020.

* Mr. Lai Tsz Wah is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the former executive
directors, Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic and Mr. Wong Kui Shing,
Danny, agreed to waive their emoluments of HK$187,000 and
HK$516,000, respectively. There was no other arrangements
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office as a director in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group for years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

@A TSR st

——H+ZRA=+—HLEHFE

EFRTEERME @

B 5E

(@ RIE-ZFNA-+IHAERE-

by RIZEZZEFNEZ+OHEESZ
FOoUER B _—_F=H=HEH
fFo

(0 RIZBEZZHFNAtHERE-

(d RIZE-ZTF+A+NBAEREZRE-

* BFELEETARABTEEH M
HR EXFiRBEZINEBEEER
TRBHREHRRB ZME -

REE_ZE-_ZTE+_F=+—HIE
B RiITESERERTHEMSEE
BEIRMEAZZMED5%187,000%
TLRK516,0008 T - BE_E - —F K
TECRE+RB=+—HIEFEERE
BEEMEIREREEAM S Hi
ZHEo

RBEE_F_—Fr_ZF_FTE+_A
—t+—HUEEE - AEETEMEER
EREARERAREHFMEEMNESRES
AEFRMESE/MATMATERZ &
BB ERRER Z fE

RNEBRENEERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1B.AfUEEHMAL
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FRARERRAURSHMATEE—%
included one director (2020: one director), details of whose BEF(CE_ZTE: —%ESR)  Hils
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the EBEHN X122 ®EgzEE (T
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2020: four) “EF ML) BIFESHIFARET
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief Bz REHNMES 2 A FEFHMF
executive of the Company are as follows: BaAOE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—T-—F —ETEF
FHET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e REMBEA 2,698 2,985
Retirement benefits BRAIRTEF] 72 72
2,770 3,057
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MEBUTHBEZ LIFRARBES 2R
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the SHMEEABUNT :

following bands is as follows:

2021 2020
Number of Number of
employee employee
—EB_—f —ETH

EBE A EEAR

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £2%1,000,0008 7T 4 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 & 1,500,000 75 - 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these individuals as an RREFE AEETEMEELAER

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ARIRE AT SEHFMEZEALTZME

for loss of any office in connection with the management of the A EERMATMARER 2 B 1R

affairs of any member of the Group for both years. BhSE AR - ffE -

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS

15.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil) nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period.

LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing operations and discontinued
operation

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14. 18 2

FABEETRBREBE_T_—F
+ZB=+—BLEENRE (T2
BE L E) 0 BRSPS RET I BRI
EARE

EBREE

RECEXRBREKILEEER
%
FAATHEBAEEGREARBEHEA
TR T H B

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
T —F —BEFE
FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the FAEstEEREAREEGEE
Company for the purpose of calculating basic AT HEAE AEEEAEEEE
and diluted loss per share 33,410 71,648
Number of shares n & HE
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EIETF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares F{FstEERERRIEEBIE

for the purpose of calculating basic and ZiameErHaE e
diluted loss per share

The computation of diluted loss per share for years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options since their assumed exercise would

result in decrease in loss per share.

789,211,046 789,211,046

HEBE_F_—FR_BIFF+Z
R=t+—HLEEZSREEHERIT
BERTEAABZERE REAZR
RITEBRETEERERBREMD

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. B RE1E @

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the
year from the continuing operations attributable to owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

REFBIEEXES
FADEBNEEFRCEEB A E
ESREAREEEEIZ TR
=1

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
B —F —E2TEF
FHT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of RABEB ANELEAFEERSE
the Company 33,410 71,648
Less: Ve
Loss for the year attributable to owners of BRIEREETE 2 RAANBHEE A
the Company from discontinued operations — E{LE A5 EE51E - (14,208)
Loss for the purpose of calculating BEstBREBREXERE 2
basic and diluted loss per share from BREAREEHEE BB
continuing operations 33,410 57,440

From discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic and diluted loss per
share for the discontinued operation attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$nil (2020: HK$0.02) per share, based on
the loss for the year from discontinued operation attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$nil (2020: HK$14,208,000) and
the number of shares detailed above for the calculation of both

basic and diluted loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 4% B SR e st 1
Office
Furniture equipment
Hotel  Leasehold and Motor and
properties improvements fixtures Vehicles  machinery Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE i BAZRME
BIEYE MEEE REE RE R4 At

FET T TR FAET TR TR

cosT (3%
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE—-F—H 438,010 111,368 15,032 1,502 3,544 569,456
Additions HE - - 213 - = 213
Disposals HE = = (270) (292) = (562)
Reclassified as held for sale ENMDBARELE - (390) (1,329) - - (1,719)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 35,442 5,885 899 70 169 42,465
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZRFE+ZA=1+—H 473,452 116,863 14,545 1,280 3,713 609,853
Transfer 3 =
Additions hE - 317 224 = = 541
Disposals HE - (390) (175) - - (565)
Exchange adjustments B R A% 15,200 2,524 400 40 92 18,256
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+ZA=1+—H 488,652 119,314 14,994 1,320 3,805 628,085
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RetinE
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE—F—H 197,844 101,638 12,250 1,014 2,749 315,495
Provided for the year EEERE 26,362 1,537 1,035 196 130 29,260
Reclassified as held for sale BNMOBARMELHE - (390) (1,329) = = (1,719)
Impairment loss recognised in RERTEIZAERE

profit or loss 27,542 1,450 - - - 28,992
Eliminated on disposals & R bR - - (270) (160) = (430
Exchange adjustments EREE 19,902 5,402 766 62 127 26,259
At 31 December 2020 RIEZRE+"A=+—H 271,650 109,637 12,452 1,112 3,006 397,857
Provided for the year EEERE 26,409 1,600 729 99 147 28,984
Eliminated on disposals & B RS = (390) (170) = = (560)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 9,001 2,347 350 38 75 11,811
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F5+ZA=+—H 307,060 113,194 13,361 1,249 3,228 438,092
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A=+—H 181,592 6,120 1,633 Al 577 189,993
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZRE+-A=+—H 201,802 7,226 2,093 168 707 211,996

S TE B 42

KEEREHEXRERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

BB M EE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Hotel properties
(comprising land and

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and

buildings)

Over the shorter of the term of
lease of land use rights, or the
remaining co-operative periods

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 5 to 10 years

10% to 20%

8% to 20%

20%

machinery

Notes:

(a)

Included in the hotel properties is a hotel property with a
carrying value of HK$89,735,000 (2020: HK$105,215,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,322,000 (2020:
HK$6,322,000) located in Guangzhou (“Rosedale Guangzhou
Hotel”). The Group holds the land use rights and property right
of the hotel property for a term expiring in January 2037, under
the name of Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale
Guangzhou").

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement (the “Co-operative
Agreement”) entered into between Allied Glory Investment
Limited ("Allied Glory”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the minority shareholder (the
"PRC Partner”) of Rosedale Guangzhou, the co-operative period
for Rosedale Guangzhou is 50 years commencing from 15
January 1987.

Rosedale Guangzhou is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture incorporated in the PRC and its major asset is Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel, which it owns and operates. The land use
and property rights of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel would be
transferred to the PRC Partner upon the completion of the co-
operative period. Pursuant to the approval issued by the Foreign
Economic and Trade Commission, Rosedale Guangzhou was
granted an initial co-operative period of 30 years and such
approval also stated that, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, the co-operative period could be extended for a
further period of time but not more than 20 years. Rosedale
Guangzhou was then granted a business licence with a period
of 30 years which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry of
the business licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with
Allied Glory to jointly apply for the extension of the business
licence to 15 January 2037.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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MEME - BERREEENDRZEGE
LU O FRITE
B IS 3 BrmEREsEE
(BiE Lt FHASL S (FHAR F
RIEF) BRFE (URIEE
HEY=EE HEFHISEI104
(U852 E 2 %)
RERREE 10% —20%
AE 8'/3% —20%
WAERE 20%
T 1% 2%
MiaE

(a)

BEYESE —EUREMNTIRE
E789,735,0008 7T (CE_TF .

105,215,000 75) (AR E
586,322,000 T (ZE -84
6,322,00077T)) 2 BEM (MTARE
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ARAT (TEMIHE) 2487 A
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EMERRNR _SE=tF&—HEm-°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Allied Glory, therefore, on 8 July 2016 applied to the China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (the
“CIETAC") for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”) to
reinstate the co-operative period of Rosedale Guangzhou to
50 years and the PRC Partner to cooperate with Allied Glory to
jointly apply to relevant government authorities to extend the
business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou for a further period of
20 years.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received the Arbitral Award issued
by the CIETAC pursuant to which the co-operative period for
Rosedale Guangzhou under the Co-operative Agreement shall
be extended until 15 January 2027 and the PRC Partner shall
provide all necessary assistance to Rosedale Guangzhou in the
application process for extending its business licence.

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration.
The PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to
cooperate with Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied
Glory then submitted an application to Guangzhou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Intermediate Court”) for enforcement
of the Arbitral Award and the application was accepted by
the Intermediate Court in July 2017. The Intermediate Court
directed such application to Guangzhou Haizhu Court which
subsequently issued an execution order (the “Execution Order”)
to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and Information
Technology (BN M BKRERK TEFHMELER)and
Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision
(BMMBHREmSMNEEEEEER) on 14 September 2017
enabling Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence.
On 30 November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended
due to the fact that, based on the reply from the Bureau
of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision, the
unilateral application for the extension of the business licence
could not be proceeded as it is subject to further re-submission
with relevant extension documents.

On 18 July 2019, the business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou
which expired on 15 January 2017 was renewed and the
operating period of Rosedale Guangzhou was extended to 15
January 2027.

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel
property with a carrying value of HK$91,857,000 (2020:
HK$96,587,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$34,469,000 (2020: HK$34,469,000), situated in Shenyang.
The Group holds the land use rights and property right of the
hotel property for a term expiring on 28 April 2046.

R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X —

S G+-A=+—BILEE

16. V£ R&E @

M5k -

(a)

(&)

it 8RR _ZF—RELANARA
TEHEREEEZHAHEEZERS (T4
BEEREEBZHMRESS)) B5F
BARE (THRE)) LR S EBRINE
ESOFTERPEABHAGREGIF
$H (5] 17 AR B BT 14 48 FR 55 N 30 B
BB EHIRE— D IEHI205 -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment

The Group incurred operating losses in its hotel operations
segment in the PRC, and there were certain adverse changes
in the market and economic environment in particular the
effect from COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC in which the hotel
operations of the Group are located.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs of the hotel operations in the PRC have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations with the assistance of Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer
not connected to the Group. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
of the Group with reference to past performance and expectation
for future environment covering a five-years period for
Guangzhou and a eleven-years period for Shenyang with pre-
tax discount rates of 20.52% and 11.44% as at 31 December
2020. A eleven-years financial budget is used in the cash flow
projections for Shenyang by management in the current year so
as to fully utilise the unused tax losses during the forecast period.
The annual growth rates for Guangzhou and Shenyang are 2%
and 5% respectively, as based on the industry growth forecasts
which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the relevant industry. The cash flows beyond the period covered
in the cash flow projections are extrapolated using a 2% growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use calculated is
the estimated gross margin, which is determined based on the
hotels" CGUs’ past performance and management expectations
for the market development. The above key assumptions takes
into consideration higher degree of estimate uncertainties in the
current year subject to how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, from the above
assessment on each hotel operation located in the PRC, the
recoverable amount of the CGU of the hotel operation in
Shenyang is estimated to be less than the carrying amount
by HK$28,992,000. An impairment loss of HK$28,992,000 is
recognised on the hotel operations in Shenyang accordingly.
For hotel operations in Shenyang, impairment loss is allocated
to property, plant and equipment on a pro-rata basis, of which
impairment loss of HK$27,542,000 was allocated to the hotel
property in Shenyang.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss
was made as no impairment indicator was identified.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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16. V£ 23 Rk E @
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS

lﬁF

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

——H+ZRA=+—HLEHFE

17.FREEE

Leased properties

HK$'000
HEMmE
FHET
cosT R4
At 1 January 2020 RIZEZZEHF—F—H 82,449
Expiration of lease contract MESNER (77,135)
Exchange adjustments PE 2 B EE 76
At 31 December 2020 A _E_ZF+_HA=+—H 5,390
Expiration of lease contract HESHNE® -
Exchange adjustments IZ‘ITL FE 34
At 31 December 2021 R _E_—F+"HA=+—H 5,424
Depreciation and impairment loss IE R RERBE
At 1 January 2020 N_Z2TZF—HF—H 48,703
Provided for the year NEEEE 31,180
Expiration of lease contract ME&SNER (77,135)
Exchange adjustments bE AR 33
At 31 December 2020 N_EZEF+"HA=+—H 2,781
Provided for the year NEEEE 1,809
Expiration of lease contract BEE50E M 22
Exchange adjustments PE A% -
At 31 December 2021 N_E-—F+"HA=+—H 4,612
Carrying value IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—&+ZHA=+—H 812
At 31 December 2020 RIE-EBEF+"H=+—H 2,609
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—& C"T-%&
FHT FET
Total cash outflow for leases MEZREMHAREE 1,778 22,087

BeREHEERARAR
20214 4R
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

7.

RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
leases various offices, warehouses and hotel property for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one
to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract

and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties where its
hotel operations are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately only if the

payments made can be allocated reliably.

On 31 December 2020, the lease on the hotel property in Hong
Kong had been expired. Accordingly the right-of-use assets as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 principally represented the lease of

office premise in Hong Kong.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$956,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$812,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: lease liabilities of HK$2,734,000 and related right-
of-use assets of HK$2,609,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

18. BEETBRAFTEBEFEZ

TREE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
8- CE2ITHE
FHET FET

Unlisted JEE™
— Equity investment - RRELE 6,013 -
6,013 -

The above unlisted equity investment represent the Group's
equity interest in a private entity established in PRC, EM & E
TEERBRAB(HEIER"). The directors of the Company
have elected to designate this investment in equity instrument as
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognizing short-term fluctuations
in the investment in profit or loss would not be consistent with
the Group's strategy of holding the investment for long term
investment purpose and realizing the performance potential in the

long run.

The directors of the Company assessed whether the Group
has control over & #E based on whether the Group has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of % &
/& unilaterally. After assessment, the directors of the Company

concluded that the Group does not have control over 12 25 2.

I EHREREEAEBR—BT
B ZMABRENTEECEER
BRAB (TRB%R) hZRE AR
BEFRDEERIERETIARERES
BATEESFAHMEENRZ  RES
REBENBERTRRZKEZEHK
I EREREZREFRARE
REBERRIENZHRKE-

FABEEREFERAESERENE
HEETEEERNBREEN GEE
EREHBEERER TSR &5
B ARBDEFNBERELERLTIE
ERAEIESIRE

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. 1 EY =

HK$'000
FBT

Fair value ATEE
At 1 January 2020 A CECEEFE—HF—H 90,000
Exchange adjustments PE A% 2,342
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss R iE& R~ A BER L FEE (37,342)
At 31 December 2020 RZ2ZEF+"HA=+—H 55,000
Exchange adjustments bE S EE 3,483
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIERER 2 AFEE R FEE (33,483)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—H+Z“A=+—H 22,000

The Group's investment properties represent a completed complex
for commercial use in the PRC. The Group holds the property
interest under operating lease to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Accordingly, the property interest held under
operating lease is measured using the fair value model and is

classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out by Vision Appraisal and Consulting
Limited and Asset Appraisal Limited respectively. Both valuers are
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the

Group.

The fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was determined
based on the income capitalisation approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. There has been no change from the valuation

approach used in the prior year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{E —_&—

19.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best

use of the properties is their current use.

—=.AH
=

19. KB @
RIS ZEYE T AT IE [
% R A RBERRAES

RS R R MY 5L

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

ZEY)

Al R o

Relationship of

Fair Value Valuation unobservable inputs to
hierarchy Fair value approach Unobservable inputs Significant inputs fair value
BEREBAYRA
RTEEER ATEE &ERE BELBRBARR ERBARE ATEEZMG
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E_-f TETEF
FET THT
Level 3 22,000 55,000 Income Monthly market rent N/A (2020: Ranged from An increase in the market
capitalisation  taking into account the RMB113 rent used would result in
differences in location, to RMB470 per an increase in fair value,
and individual factors, square metre per and vice versa.
such as frontage and month)
size, between the
comparables and the
property
=R WmBEALE SAMERHEE (Estky TBRCEIZRENF MATSEEM
LEEMEEMEZ BN BASTARKARKNZ SERRATEEEM.
ERENRZE Fme TEANEB4707T) Rz 7R
ERAN EZ8)

Capitalisation rates'
taking into account
the capitalisation of
rental income potential,
nature of the property,
and prevailing market
condition
EXEE (R RS K
ABRERNERENE Y
EUERRTHN

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hierarchy

during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Note 1:

The capitalisation rate used in the estimation of fair value of the

properties principally represented the property yield rate as at 31

December 2021 (2020: Discount rate derived from comparable

entities and risk-free rate etc.)

10.53% (2020: 9.26%)

10.53% (CE-F&F .
9.26%)

An increase in the
capitalisation rate used
would result in an decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.

FIRERCREM,
SERATEERD
R2Z 7o

BE_T_—FR_ZF_FF+_A
= +—HLEEERTESAREBE AT
BEEBRZE=HR-

BEET -

B MERAFEEMBZERERETENR
KRB —F+-"A=+—HZMWEHK
ER(CESF HITEHAILERBEE R
REKERENEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
Inventories represent food and beverage, consumables and other FEIEBEN —REEBREFHAZE
goods of hotel which are to be utilised in the ordinary course of M HEREREME R ERATER
operations and are carried at cost.
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 R E M EULERSR
At 31 December
m+ZBA=+—H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
B —F —EIE
FHET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 FEWAR R
— contracts with customers —HBEREH 519 1,140
- operating lease receivables — KSR ERWARIE 241 242
760 1,382
Other receivables H AU AR 65,629 42,125
Less: Impairment losses recognised B AFERR 2 REEE
for the year - (10,500)
65,629 31,625
Rental and utility deposits HeERKkEXRS 1,231 1,250
Prepayments and other deposits ENREREMZS 2,423 1,831
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R EH e W R R AREE 70,043 36,088

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

R E M HRRME

—BE-—F+-A=+—ALEE

B 5 REMBRIRR @)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented UTREZRUERTIREZARZN 2
based on the invoice dates. IREC D AT o

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EI-F T ITF
FHET FHT

0-30 days 0Z30H 749 1,063
31 to 60 days 31&E60H 5 272
61 to 90 days 61%E90H 6 43
Over 90 days #BiB90H - 4
760 1,382

The Group generally grants credit period up to 30 days to its

customers upon issuance of invoice.

At 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$11,000 (2020: HK$319,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$nil
(2020: HK$4,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default since the Group has reasonable

information to support the amounts are fully recoverable.

At 31 December 2021, included in other receivable are unsecured
loan to BE2E of HK$39,631,000 (2020: HK$nil), which is
interest-bearing at 5% per annum and repayable on 31 May

2023.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

are set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FERA-ROETEAFREAEZENE
308 Z BRERAR -

A B —FE+ZA=+—H F&£H
ZESEREEREHROERERES
11,0007t (ZZ 2 &4 1 319,000/ 7T)
ZEBERR -2 EE ZERERAN 2]
B EA# 2EaEsRT 8T
(ZZ T F 1 4,000587T) BHEEA0H
HU - B EEIEAELN RRAR
EEFSBRENSTRZERBEAATH
Wlelo

NZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H> HfthpE
KEEREERRZSERRHNEKRE
#39,631,0008 T (ZE2ZFF 1 TH
7T)  HEEMNRS%wH B AR _E
—=ERA=+—BHEE-

85 REMBWKIRR Z BETHFIEEH
fm e BRI EE35(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

22.INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 2. FKEEERE
Financial assets mandatorily measured as FVTPL: REEBERRATEAEFEZEME
=
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
B —F —EEF
FHET FHET
Listed securities held for trading: FEEE LHEs .
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLHZRAES - 116
23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. IR1THEEGRRIRE
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from IRITAERIETIHFEFZF0.01%E2.02%
0.01% to 2.02% (2020: 0.01% to 2.02%) per annum. (CE-ZF 1 0.01%FE2.02%) 5t 2
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out in IRITAEER R BT 2 BN G E M
note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements. AR MIEE35(b) ©
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B 5 Fe HL M FE {1 BR X
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-—& C"T-EBE
FHET FHET
Trade payables B 5 (TR 2,737 4,411
Other payables: L FE T BRFR -
Deposit received BlZE 5,889 6,870
Accrued expenses FESTRESZ 13,341 11,463
Other tax payables Hh eI 805 556
Other payables H &I AR AR 23,787 13,611
43,822 32,500
46,559 36,911
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24. B Z R H M IR @)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented B RMNRMIZERHIAN R ZRE D
based on the invoice date. ManTF o
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EI-F T ITF
FHT FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 1,123 1,062
31 to 60 days 31&260H 542 762
61 to 90 days 61%E90H 187 442
Over 90 days #BiB90H 885 2,145
2,737 4,411
The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60 BEZRIRAN 308 E60H -
days.
INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING 25. 5t EfEE

The interest-bearing borrowing at 31 December 2021 represents
a borrowing from a financial institution with principal balance of
HK$22,000,000 (2020: HK$22,000,000), carries fixed interest at
15% (2020: 15%) per annum and repayable within one year. The
interest-bearing borrowing is secured by the Group's interests

over certain subsidiaries.

AT —F+"HB=+—HZ5E
BERARA—ReREEZEE 52
4585 %22,000,0008 T (ZE T :
22,000,000 7T) » #REF|ZK15% (ZF
ZEE5%) SHEEERE > BE—F
NEE ZAEBERRERTEETH
BAT Z B FH IR

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

26.LEASE LIABILITIES 26. THE& &
Disclosures of revenue-related items: W ERTEE R E
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F TR
FAT TFET
Lease liabilities payable: EEHREAE:
Within one year — &R 956 1,863
Within a period of more than one year —FEU EERBEMEZIBA
but not exceeding two years - 871
Within a period of more than two years MEUELERBREAFZHEA
but not exceeding five years - -
956 2,734
Less: Amount due for settlement within 128 B R ERREERIE
12 months shown under current liabilities MBREar T (956) (1,863)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  12{E B % 2 EAEEHIAE
shown under non-current liabilities RIERBEE TR - 871

At 31 December 2021, the weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied on the calculation of present value of

lease liabilities was 5.63% per annum (2020: 5.63%).

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in the
leases are not readily determinable. In determining the discounts
rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is readily
observable as the starting point and then applies judgement
and adjusts such observable rate to determine the incremental

borrowing rate.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

RIEZ—F+ZB=+—H 858
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2"‘_1 P
wh [

RS R R MY 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

27. 58 8EE

&

At 31 December

W+=ZB=+—8H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F —ECEF
FHT FHET
Hotel rooms BEERE 654 1,645
Food and Beverage BN 6 385
660 2,030
At 1 January 2020 contract liability accounted to HK$1,883,000. RZE-_ZEFE—B—H ' &aaEAs

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised

1,883,000 HT e

TRIITHEBERENEREREDZEA

in relation to the carried-forward contract liabilities. BEEo

Hotel Food and
rooms beverage
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE EEIN
TFHET FHETT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZT”_—H+”°-H=+—H
ILEE
Revenue recognised that was included BRI FAFIVENEE
in the contract liability balance at the BERZ WA
beginning of the year 154 15
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZT-_ZEHF+-HA=+—H
ILEE
Revenue recognised that was included ERIFAFVENEE
in the contract liability balance at the EERZ WA
beginning of the year 157 158

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts of unsatisfied obligations
in relation to the contracts of hotel rooms and food and beverage

are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

Yo BX &4
= & AREZ

R_Z_—F+-RB=+—H 8AE
EENERSNAMNRBITEBNE
BB RE—ENEDBIEA -

HEZERBRATE

20214E %R

165



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e M B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

—Et-A=t—ALEE

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

8. IEIEIRIAA R

UTFARAEERBEFERIZIE
IERIEEENRESS) !

Accelerated tax
depreciation

HK$'000

MERIEIRE

FAET

At 1 January 2020 RZZZEF—H—H 30,055

Exchange adjustments B R AR 1,898

Credit to profit or loss (note 9) st A8@ (HEE9) (7,920)
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 RIBZE2E+"A=+—HK

N _E_—F—F—H 24,033

Exchange adjustments ERAE (3,346)

Charge to profit or loss (note 9) EA?Eﬁﬁ‘:F‘?Df‘? (HF5E9) 22

At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ_—-F+”"A=+—H 20,709

At the end of the reporting period,

the Group has unused

tax losses of approximately HK$631,445,000 (2020:
HK$617,382,000) available for offset against future profits. No

deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses

due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in

unused tax losses are losses of approximately 102,037,000 (2020:
HK$110,171,000) with expiry dates as disclosed in the following

MNEBERERE  NEBZRB ARG
53849 7%631,445,0008 5 (ZE -8
£ :617,382,000/87T) > o] BEIKIH K
i Al o AR R AEFE 5T H B 2 3 A 28
BRI B EGERDEERIEE
E-ABAMRBEEEEEIHATETR
W2 E51849102,037,0008 T (Z2Z

table. Other losses maybe carried forward indefinitely. T4 1 110,171,000 70) o EMEEA
PR ARAE o

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-—F 2R
FHET FHETT
2021 2 —F - 24,306
2022 2 F 416 416
2023 —EF= 33,993 33,993
2024 —ENE 16,930 16,930
2025 —E"RHE 34,526 34,526
2026 “E TR 16,172 —
102,037 110,171
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible
temporary difference in relation to the loss on fair value change
of investment properties. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

28 REMIBBAEFT @

RESHR cEBARRKENER
TEEZHEENPIINERKEZE A
PSR BJ B B A T H0AR B By = 2R AR LUR
fHAEERI A FIL I EZ F R 08
BRERREDIEERIEEE

29. "N B g A

Number of Share
shares capital
HK$000
1788 [
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEBBTZEBER
Authorised: EE .
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 2021 R_ZE_ZF—HF—H-
TECRERIECF
+-_B=+—H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 2021 R-ZTZZF—F—H-
“EIZFERIZI—F
+-B=+—H 789,211,046 7,892
KEEREHEXRERAR

20214E %R

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e M B IR MR

N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 30 May 2013 which is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last
condition to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by its

board of directors.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”) to
any eligible employee (including executive directors) and any
non-executive director of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”), any supplier of goods or services to
the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity, any consultant, adviser, manager, officer and
entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity, and any shareholder
or any member of the Group who has contributed to the business
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity (the
"Participant”), as incentives or rewards for their contributions or

potential contribution to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of adoption of the Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by its
shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and not yet exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed

30% of the issued shares of the Company from time to time.
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TZERAZHIE EEEARTERR
RE LHEFFRPMUIRI -

STEEERA AR A BEAEREY
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(TEx&EH) HExEBFEREBEZ
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B (BEITES REAFATES
ERRArERRNERRESRRHEE M
ARB2EEH TEENEARER
BzERER BXAEERNEARES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which Options granted and may be granted to any Participant in
aggregate in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from its shareholders in
general meeting with such Participant and his/her associates (as

defined in the Listing rules) abstaining from voting.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period as the board of directors may in its absolute discretion
determine which shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of grant and subject to the provisions of early termination thereof
and the board of directors may provide restrictions on the exercise
of an Option. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of the Company’s share on the date of grant.

At 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 28,000,000 (2020: 34,000,000), representing 3.5%
(2020: 4.3%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

@A TSR st

——H+ZRA=+—HLEHFE

30. UK Z @)

ERBURSETZBRES
EIJ (&)
ERERARBDRRICRRARGE LU
(ER2HEERABBA (EER LD
RAD BBARERER) ERTRAET
ERAMSREZBREIRZBET
REFHRITROBE  REEFREY
HE (B4 R) siER-+ @5 HE
RNEHATBRARIBSETRNZ
1% °

‘E

R BRREARBRHBAES218
WE > B B (1B T - BB E R
BB ZEH HESSUREEED
BEE BB AR TE A R AR
TSBBHREHAPE105F AR
B ZIRBRIEE X R EE G A AN
ZHITERRERGIFTRE - TEERAE
NBEFETE BRTER UREE
RIE) (VA RBRROIRELBEZES
B (INEBREBMA AR S HRN
Z R TE ; KA QB RPN H
HE iz EE-

A —F+ZH=+—H RE
TR BB ERITEZ BREM S K
B 15 %28,000,000 (ZE & !
34,000,000f%) > AR AR ZHZ B
TRRN3.5% (ZEZZF 1 4.3%)

RNEBRENEERARAT
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the

Company (CONTINUED)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant

Vesting date

—Et-A=t—ALEE

30. UBE KRR 55 @

ERBURSET ZBRES

I NC)

BREZFEENFBEOT

Exercise period

Exercise price

BEEHBH SREEH 1T{EHA TEE
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
“ET—tEFENA+WNH —ZE—tENEZ+NUH ETE—tEFEMNA-+HHAZE 0.59% 7T

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by eligible participants during the current and prior

years:

e

F#MAZ+=H

TERREGERSHEENAFERBEHE
FEMFAADBREZES) !

Outstanding

Outstanding

at Lapsed At
1 January during 31 December
2021 the year 2021
RZE_—%f
+ZA
RZEZ— =+—H
Categories of participants 2HEHE —B—H FRRYK B XFRES
Directors Bx 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Employees and other eligible participants ~ EEREMEERSHEE 32,500,000  (6,000,000) 26,500,000
34,000,000 (6,000,000) 28,000,000

Exercisable at the end of the REMRAIITE
reporting period 28,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) MEEHTEE B 0.59 0.59 0.59
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

31.

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (CONTINUED)

30.

Outstanding

UK S @

ERBURSBET 2 BIRES

2l @

Outstanding

at Lapsed At
1 January during 31 December
2020 the year 2020
RZE"EE
+ZAH
RIZ-EH Sar=ls
Categories of participants 2HEHE —B—H FEREY OB FxES
Directors = 9,300,000 (7,800,000) 1,500,000
Employees and other eligible participants ~ EEREMEEKRSHE 46,500,000  (14,000,000) 32,500,000
55,800,000  (21,800,000) 34,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the BEMRAITE

reporting period 34,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) MEFHITEE Bo) 0.59 0.59 0.59

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 31. R @A =

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make

the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$3,958,000
(2020: HK$3,766,000) represents contributions paid/payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

plans.

TEBAFMAEEECGEREERIIAT
MRABEE B ZEELEAER
ZEENR UEESAFA LHIE
SEAER - FERARARFETRNAEZ
5% st B fFHE R MEEIRAEF
HREEFZ|ZMHER

FERTENE AR ZEEHEAPEE
FEEZEERNENFEIRE  &F
MEABRRFMERAETEDEARER
REF B MR BEMNERES K
EEMZEBNENEEIE—ERZEE
TS EHRE Z HRR e

FAB R AP RE RS 2 B 2 48483,958,00058 7T
(ZEZFT4F : 3,766,000 7T) 54 &
st B AR ELERAZE R BN
/e R

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

32.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) As referred to in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 26 February 2020, the Group disposed of the
Disposal Group. The net assets of the Disposal Group at the

date of disposal were as follows:

32. HENB AT

(a)

MU r & W IR AR M EE10PF &L > 1Y
“ETTFAT+RHE T&EE
BHELEER LEEBRNHE
HEIRWEEZEDT ¢

2020
HK$'000
ZEIEE
Consideration received BEIKRHE FAET
Cash received in prior years NEFEFEEBWRE 23,906
Cash received during the year FRBEWIRE 44,594
68,500
26/2/2020
HK$'000
“ZIZF
“AZ+XH
FAT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over KREZEHENHEREERGBEN DR

which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment ME BB RZE 44,307
Inventories EE 646
Trade and other receivables B 5 KR E M EUERER 2,887
Bank balance and cash RITE R LIRS 431
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MM KRR (35,483)
Tax payables FETHR IR (51)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE (520)
Net assets disposed of T EZEERE =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiaries: HE—ME AR : 12,217

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)
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32.HEHRBAE @

(CONTINUED) @@ (@
26/2/2020
HK$'000
ZEIEE
“BZ+/H
FAT
Consideration received BRAE 68,500
Net assets disposed of PRLECBERE (12,217)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (23,674)
Reclassification of cumulative translation HEHEEER R ERHE
reserve upon disposal of the Disposal Group BENpEEEH
to profit or loss 19,153
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries before taxation & BT 8 A B BOBRTR AT UK & 51,762
Less: PRC withholding tax A RETEIR (6,850)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries after taxation HEMBABNRRENRR 44,912
2020
HK$'000
TERITE
FAT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRERARE
Cash consideration received during the year ERWIIZREERE 44,594
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHEZRITERKRESE (431)
44,163

KEEREHEXRERAR
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2. HENB AR @

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group also b)) REBEE_Z_ZTFE+_H=+—
disposed of Rosedale Oriental Hotel Mgt. Inc. and Rosedale BEEE XEBITEHE
Hotel Group Limited. The net assets of these subsidiaries at Rosedale Oriental Hotel Mgt. Inc.
the date of disposal were as follow: EHBAEEEAFRAT © ILEH

BAERHELBHENEEFEAN
T
2020
HK$'000
“EBITHF
Net assets disposed of: FrtEZEEEE ! FHET
Other receivables H MU IR 147
Amount due from a related company EW—EEEABRIE 2,804
Bank balances RITAEER 126
3,077
Consideration received BB 7,000
Net assets disposed of T EZEERE (3,077)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR WK 3,923
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERABE .
Cash consideration received during the year FAKEIZRERE 7,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B PTHE 2 BITHAERRIRE (126)
6,874

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of Shropshire Property Limited to an independent
third party for cash consideration of HK$1 and a gain on
disposal of HK$15,045,000 was recorded in the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The net liabilities of
this subsidiary at the date of disposal was HK$15,045,000.
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REE_Z-_—F+ZB=+—
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # X

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

The properties held by the Group which are for rental purposes
have committed lessees for the next one and seven years

respectively.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

—=.AH
ﬁ

RS R R MY 5L

——H+ZRA=+—HLEHFE

3. EHEZHE
FEBMESLEAA

TEBBFEERBEZYMECDRITR
R—TFe £ FE R ABEAMFH A

PMEERWZ RBRBEECROT ¢

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'OOO

FAT :F,%TE

Within one year —FR 21,218 25,596
In the second year B _F 18,622 22,898
In the third year B=F 14,961 18,661
In the fourth year Epuifs 15,037 17,825
In the fifth year BRE 15,447 18,201
After five years AER 567 18,738
85,852 121,919

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share

issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of debt.

34.

BEXEREE

AERZEAEESHEEBERTGRE
mEFHRETE BREAEEAZEE
AIREEENRFTARRMERAD
HorEEBERKE FFEHF-

AERZEFARBEERERREEE
BEUKRERABERE ABEED (B
BETRAERERE o

FABDEEESHFEMNELRB 185
Hp—MOBERBDEEFEBELN
AREBBEERFAMEZ AR -RIBERE
BEREEZHERS ~EEERBIK
ERB TG BORG UK #E
TREHFSEAN HEEEARBIFLT
fey e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

35.&fTH

(a) ER T AR

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—&5 C"B-Z&
FET FET

Financial assets EMEE

FVTPL BEERE A TEESE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BEEBEREATEENS

— Held for trading —FEEE - 116
Financial assets at amortised cost BB A ECSHEE 1,852,777 1,847,594
1,852,777 1,847,710

Financial liabilities EREaE
Amortised cost HEH R A 39,865 27,781
Interest-bearing borrowing EEE 22,000 22,000
Lease liabilities HEAaE 956 2,734

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, investments held for trading, bank
balances, trade and other payables, interest— bearing
borrowing and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and

effective manner.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk

Neither subsidiaries of the Company nor the Company
have significant foreign currency sales, purchases or
balances. Therefore, the Group's exposure to foreign

currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate interest-bearing borrowing
and fixed-rate lease liabilities (see note 25 and 26 for
details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(see note 23 for details). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arises.

Total interest income from financial assets that are

measured at amortised cost is as follows:

35. &R T H @
(b) AFERAIEEIEAEREE

(&)
5 B R
() EEmE

EREMB AT EERTH
BELUMNEETEREEAHE
BEAREH EIL > AEEX
2 Z N R B o

(i) FFEmEE

FEREERRERGEMEER
EEEHEEERANATE
BEMNERR GFERE2HENW
55255226) o A& 75 EER B
FRIBTEGFRBRANRER
SMERER GFIRE2HME
23) o RS IR MAEH
TR o AT AEEE IR
BRIERIR ARG W ASE RS
ZREPEAFIERM

BB AFEZEREE
FRSMBA BUALT :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-_—F TR E

FHET FET

Financial assets at amortised cost  REHM A EZSMEE 20,368 20,133
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. 2 T H )
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHERMREIEEEREE
policies (CONTINUED) (&)
Market risk (CONTINUED) 5% R fE ()

(ii) Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

(i) FFEmE (&)

WIFBEBBHE A FEES
&

FVTPL: EzEMBEZMERE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-_—F TECEF
FET FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#IHM A EZ SREE 1,650 1,762
Sensitivity analysis SR E T

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis point (2020: 25 basis points) increase
or decrease in non-fixed interest rate bank balances
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2020: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/
increase by HK$4,445,000 (2020: decrease/increase
by HK$5,033,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its non-fixed

interest rate bank balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

35. T H @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BFERMBEIEEAEREE
policies (CONTINUED) (#&)

15 BB ()
(iii) R ER LR

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
management of the Group manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of respective instruments had been 10%
higher/lower, the pre-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 would decrease/increase by HK$12,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of investments

held for trading.

rEERZBEDEATE
EfEREAZTFZRERK
RRABEREEE - FLI B B
BRGMERRAERENE
BEDRATEESENR
BEME AEEEEERE
ME—EEGTREARZK
BHESEEILERR-

HEDHT

BREINTBRENERAB
HFTE S 2 iR A ER R R

BE-

& TRB® LA T E
10% ABE"_Z "ZF+—
B=+—HLEFEZKRA
BEREERAKFEERE
ZATEEEHMAEL E
7012,00058 7t ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z

|

RA TSR MY 5t

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
investments held for trading and bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to

cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group's
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are

summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from

contracts with customers

The Group applies monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100%
(2020: 100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2021. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group sets credit limits and credit

approvals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from

contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables individually and/or
based on provision matrix. Trade receivables with balances
which are not significant or not credit impaired are grouped

under a provision matrix, based on past due status.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its hotel operations because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance

with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
two-year observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables were not

significant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. Nevertheless, the Group will keep taking legal action

against the debtors to recover the amount due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also

quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable

and supportive forward-looking information.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company assessed a credit-impaired other receivable from a
debtor of HK$10,500,000 due to the overdue of the balance
and non repayment. The Group measured the loss allowance
of such credit-impaired debtor using the lifetime ECL and

impairment loss of HK$10,500,000 was provided during the

year ended 31 December 2020.

Except for the above-mentioned credit-impaired debtor,
the directors of the Company believes that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of remaining amounts since
initial recognition and the Group assessed the ECL for the

remaining other receivables and deposits were insignificant

based on 12m ECL.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks. For the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are

insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses

is provided.
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R E M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

35. &R T H @
(b) AFERAIEEIEAEREE

(&)
B E AR

EERBHETRBE  AEEEER
REFRERFALEEEANE
BEERAGBAZ KT AXEME
BRHES WAKRERERD
ZRE-

TRFNAEEETHMEBRTSE
HNIRABR TRIBEEMEBEZ
FMARERERAEE TR
ERBFEZRFHEMGER - B8
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing SO BRERERGERNEE
EEIARRENEBEEMREE
ERATERER A

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

borrowing with repayment on demand clause is included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
exercise of rights by the lender.

ZROENBRASHRERNE

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity table TMEEZ K
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual Total
interest  or less than 13 3 months 1-5 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flow amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MR RERY RFREH
Gk (EET 1£318F  3MERE1E 155 RERSHLH BEREE
(%) TERT FTERT THET TERT FERT FERT
At 31 December 2021 3
+-B=+-H
Trade and other payables & 5 K E & (T BR 7R - 46,559 - - - 46,559 46,559
Interest-bearing borrowing st EEE 15% 25,300 - - - 25,300 22,000
Lease liabilities HESE 5.63% 1,010 - - - 1,010 956
72,869 - - - 72,869 69,515
At 31 December 2020 HRZZ-FH
+ZHA=+—-H
Trade and other payables &7 REMER RN - 27,781 - - - 27,781 27,781
Interest-bearing borrowing 5t EEE 15 23,650 - - - 23,650 22,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.63 196 392 1,476 885 2,949 2,734
51,627 392 1,476 885 54,380 52,515
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 35.&x5MIT R @
(c) EMTRAZATEEE

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the

extent it is available.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(1)

MM BREMS > SEELD T/
ITAEDBDBRAFEEFE-EHAF
BER xEBMNBURATEIER
R

LSRR N FEEE
ZHrEEEMEENFIEE

Valuation techniques

Financial asset Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
EHEE ATEE ATEEESR EEAERBEEARE
—E_-F+-A=+-H Z2"2H+°_A=+-H
FET THT
Investments held for ~ HK$nil Listed equity securities in  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
trading Hong Kong market.
- HK$116,000
BrEERE THET BRLIRARES ) BRMIREARE
—116,000% 7T
Financial asset at Unlisted equity interest in -~ N/A Level 3 Discounted cash flow method
fair value through an entity established in
profit or loss the PRC - HK$6,013,000
BRBHRRATEE R—HPERINE A I MRERERER
HEZEMEE BrmIE LR~
6,013,000 75
There were no transfers between the different levels of FRAFEERBE K BT E
the fair value hierarchy during the year. B o
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) AU FELUAR '8 B 17 1\ 1B e

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured in amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements which are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis approximate their fair values

at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

36. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group settled
the lease liabilities of approximately HK$19,800,000 by
offsetting the rental deposits paid.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash and cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flow as cash flows from financing activities.

36. AERAREREZERIER

(a)

(b)

FEFRERS
REE-T-TE+-B=+—
BiEEE cEEBREHE
fHcFeMEEHEaEN
19,800,000 7T, °

MEIBEEZEEHIR

TRFVERETHELEZEE
EaEg2y aEReRIIFREE
H-ERMEEHELEZEBENHEIR
ERRERECEHRKREERM
ERERNAEREZGERENE
RPDERMETHRERNEZR

= o
Interest
bearing Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 25) (note 26)
HEEE HEaRE st
FET THET FHET
(M$5E25) (My5E26)
At 1 January 2020 RIE_ZTFE—H—H - 43,153 43,153
Financing cash outflows REIRE M - (22,087) (22,087)
Financing cash inflows MEERETA 22,000 = 22,000
Exchange adjustments PE R - 70 70
Interest expenses FMERZ 1,554 1,398 2,952
23,554 22,534 46,088
Non-cash transaction ERERS - (19,800) (19,800)
Other changes: Hh&s)
Other payables HL{h FE T BR R (1,554) = (1,554)
At 1 January 2021 A—E-—fF—A—H 22,000 2,734 24,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

36. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

36. ERIREMNEZERINER

(CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEEEBIEL 2B EHIR
financing activities (CONTINUED) (#%)
Interest
bearing Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 25) (note 26)
EEE HEaE st
FHT FHET FHET
(fFzE25) (MFE£26)
Financing cash outflows RMEIRE M = (1,778) (1,778)
Interest expenses AMERX 1,650 1,680 3,330
23,650 2,636 26,286
Non-cash transaction FERERG - - -
Other changes: Hihgs)
Other payables H A FE AT BR R (1,650) (1,680) (3,330)
At 31 December 2021 AT —4F
+—-—B=+—H 22,000 956 22,956

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
did not enter into transactions with related parties.

There were no outstanding balances with related parties at the
end of each reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, being the
directors of the Company, during the year is set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. K ANTBIEEMNRBATIFE
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the BN BEHREREARDEREEE
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out as below: FEZHNBRBEFBHN T :
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Proportion of ownership interest Principal
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % %
WEAR S AL BN BREAME/ARELX FRARRBZMARRGLS TEEH
HH i
8- BC%EF 8- C“EIE%
% % % %
Allied Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 735 735 Investment holding
AREEERAT &8 BT REER
Apex Quality Group The British Virgin United States dollars - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited ("Apex") Islands (the"BVI") ("US$") 5,548,172
Apex Quality Group Limited ~ EB#FRHEE 5,548,172% 7t (£ 7)) RERR
(T ApexJ) (HBEBREE)
HMH China Investments Bermuda Canadian dollars 1,152,913 - - 73.5 73.5  Investment holding
HMH China Investments BRE 1,152,913M¥% REnk
Lucky Million The BVI Us$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Lucky Million EBRARES (ES REER
Investments Limited
Rosedale Hotel Group The BVI Us$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
nBEEERERAT HREMRES 1% REER
Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou The PRC US$11,500,000 - - 72.1 72.7  Hotel ownership and
Co., Ltd.f operation in the PRC
BENERBEEERAT hE 11,500,000% 7% ReEEERR
REEE
Rosedale Hotel The BVI Us$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel HEAATES 157 REER

International Limited
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(&)

38. ERFEENMBLFFIE

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Proportion of ownership interest Principal
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % %
WEAE B MM/ B ERTHE/HBEX FRARRBEZRERRELS TERH
E# EE
B _“Z_2F “EC-F "B°E%F
% % % %
Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong HK$2 - - 89.4 89.4  Hotel management in
Management Limited Hong Kong
RREEERERAT &H BT REBBEEEE
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang The PRC RMB168,000,000 - - 84.9 84.9  Hotel ownership and
Company Limited operation in the PRC
BRAREEERAT lE] A E%168,000,0007 RAEHER
REBE
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 89.4 89.4  Hotel operation in
Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited 54 AT REBLCEEE
Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited The BV US$100 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
AEBEERAERAS HEAARNES 100% 7t RERk
Shenyang Limited The BVI Us$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Shenyang Limited HERAETRES 127 REER
Success Billion Limited The BV Us$1 - - 100 100 Trading of securities in
Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited HEAATRES 1% REEBEHS
The Rosedale Luxury Hotel The PRC US$20,000,000 - - 100 100 Property investment in
& Suites Ltd.*" the PRC
HBEX (LB) BRATH  4E 20,000,000% 7 REENERE
*  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. O EZNBRAARA —KPIHIESELS R

Pursuant to the Co-operative Agreement, upon the end of
the co-operative period, the rights and ownership of Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel will be transferred to the PRC Partner.

#  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

English name for identification only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38.
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

KRB EEMBABFE
(&)

EERA LRAFEATZHBA R
REBZEBNEERETATE -ES

RAMIEMMBARZHEBEELRE
BRTTEe

£ 0 B AE I B A B BT E S
B

BREAFERERZIFRE
MEATZs+1E
TRESABEAFEREGS S AEE
FREMBARZ IS -

ownership interests (Loss)/profit
Place of and voting rights allocated to Accumulated
incorporation/  Principal place of  held by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary establishment  business interests interests interests
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEMRBLIL, ALt FEREGHAZERE SREFERESZ (B
B AR ] TEEEME R FRELE 18) /s R (207 5
8§ "B “B_-F "EEfF “E_-F “BCEF
TAT FERT TAT TAT FET THT
Apex and its subsidiaries The BVI Hong Kong and 10.60% 10.60% (4,860) (11,698) 176,203 182,804
the PRC
ApexBH I B AE EREERREE FARTE

Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests

EEFERETZERNFE
AMEAT

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

(4,860)  (11,782) 176,203 182,804

BEABEAFEREDZ AERNE QT
ZHHERMEHINUT - U THHE
FHEE 22 7 5= B P9 B0 4 81 A B8R o

BeREHEERARAR
20214 4R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. K NTBIEEMNBATIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) €=

BEEXRFEREDZIERE

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests Mt~ E 25+ @
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries Apex K B 1 /& 2\ 5]
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EZ—F TEITF
FHAT FHET
Non-current assets FEREBEE 182,652 204,956
Current assets MEEE 1,335,475 1,324,864
Non-current liabilities ERBEEB (22,574) (26,158)
Current liabilities MENBE (34,416) (39,575)
1,461,137 1,464,087
Equity attributable to owners of the RABIEB AEGHER
Company 1,284,934 1,281,283
Non-controlling interests of Apex ApexZ FEFERG = 148,530 151,919
Non-controlling interests of Apex's Apexfi B AB) 2 FEEER R
subsidiaries 27,673 30,885
Revenue N 53,830 50,828
Interest income and other income FEWA K E MU A 28,672 21,631
Expenses M (91,799) (119,969)
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEREER 2 AFERHIB
operation - (15,892)
Loss for the year KEEEE (9,297) (63,402)

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HIZE—_Z - —F+"A=+—HILFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  38. KRB FXFEM B AT FHIE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEARFEREDZZIERE
that have material non-controlling interests Mt B2~ B 2518 @

(CONTINUED)

Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex k% B [11 /8 2 5] (4)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EZ—F TETEE
FAT TFET
Loss attributable to owners of the KNABHEB AELEE
Company (5,422) (51,704)
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexZ JEVERG HE = FE (GBS 48
interests of Apex - (6,131)
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexBff @A B 2 IEIERR R FE(L 5 18
interests of Apex's subsidiaries (3,875) (5,567)
Loss for the year KEEEE (9,297) (63,402)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) A ABHEA ABGEMEE

attributable to owners of the Company Wit (B%) 5,081 12,739
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  ApexZ JEIZEREF EEEMEE

attributable to non-controlling interests Wik, (BI%)

of Apex 604 1,510

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  ApexHi /B A E Z JEIE IG5 FE (S
attributable to non-controlling interests ~ Hfth2E I Z ~ (B%)
of Apex’s subsidiaries 662 1,794

Other comprehensive income/(expense) for = E H 2 E &, (F)
the year 6,347 16,043

""""" ERENESERERAR
20214E %R 191
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_ZE " —F+"A=+—HIFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. K NTBIEEMNRBATIFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEERFEREDSZIFRE
that have material non-controlling interests B2 E 2518 @
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex K B [11 /8 2 5] (4)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-—F TETEE
FHAT FET

Total comprehensive expense attributable ZNAE] B A2 HEE X 4258

to owners of the Company 237 (38,965)
Total comprehensive expense attributable Apexz JE#E A& & FE (5 2 I B Sk 48 28

to non-controlling interests of Apex 25 (4,621)
Total comprehensive expense attributable Apexffi /@A 5z JEHE R #  FE(S

to non-controlling interests of Apex’s T HEEZREE
subsidiaries (3,212) (3,773)
Total comprehensive expense for the year < 2 E R X A8%E (2,950) (47,359)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating A& EEBIZIRETRA Cil) 35

activities (8,001) 13,273
Net cash inflow from investing activities RZEENZ RS R AFEE 155 7,194
Net cash outflow from financing activities BiE EEI 2 RS HH B8 (447) (40,356)
Net cash outflow BEmE FEE (8,293) (19,889)
192 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 I E_E _—F+_HB=1+—HIEFE

39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 39. RS EAE =18

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the world resulted
in quarantine measures and border restrictions imposed by
governments in different countries which constituted severe
negative impact on the hotel operations of the Group. Even
though the pandemic was alleviating in the PRC, the Group was
not operating at normal capacity for its hotel operations.

The impact of COVID-19 pandemic has been taken into account
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. As
the situation remains uncertain as at the date of authorising these
financial statements, the directors of the Company considered
that COVID-19 pandemic would further constitute adverse impact

to the Group’s future performance.

2019 BB H BT FEEIKRE > B
&[5 BT R B B i 48 Tl A HH A B2 IR A1
HAEENBAEEGENERENEET
E-BEPEAMNBEEMEN  BEXE
EABEERBNHAREINEEHNEZEEK

7 o

THAEUAGEEFHERRBFOLER
2019 BRIFFHREBNFE -BIRE
KREAFEMRENMEDE B RIATHE
EARATEERS 20198 RFEHR
BIERE— T HAERWRERITER
TR F 2o

40.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  40. Z AT Z M #Eik R R K f##
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (i
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F TE T
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Property, plant and equipment CUER X Yok - 57
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 569 1,934
Investment in a subsidiary R—RERBRABRZRE - 239,764
Amounts due from subsidiaries VAR 2,079,897 1,109,406
2,080,466 1,351,161
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables and prepayments HihFEW AR & B (I 718 1,536 962
Amounts due from subsidiaries VAR - 749,018
Bank balances and cash RITHEF RIRE 149 525
1,685 750,505
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMIRR 7,749 10,324
Interest-bearing borrowing SFEEE 22,000 22,000
Lease liabilities HEaR 611 1,409
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE S B B /A B 3R 1B 480,478 481,567
510,838 515,300
Net current (liabilities)/assets E (BB BEFE (509,153) 235,205
Total assets less current liabilities EEMBERTBAERE 1,571,313 1,586,366

REEFRENEZEREBRAE
20214E %R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE_E _—F+_B=+—HIEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40. AT Z AT AR R R R I 7

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) iR
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-—F “ECE
FHT FHETT
Non-current liability JEREARE
Lease liabilities HEaR - 611
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,571,313 1,585,755
Capital and reserves BEXRRHEE
Share capital i 7,892 7,892
Reserves (ER 1,563,421 1,577,863
TOTAL EQUITY T 4EEE 1,571,313 1,585,755
Movement of reserves ﬁ%{ﬁﬁ@_]
Share-based
Share Special payments Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R E BhIGE UARAREE B8 g
FHET FATT FHET FATT FHET
At 1 January 2020 R_E-_ZF—H—H - 2,019,055 11,608 (415,740) 1,614,923
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFEREEHS
expense for the year 4% - - - (17,330) (17,330)
Lapse of share option i - - (4,570) 4,570 =
Dividends fg 8 - - - (19,730) (19,730)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEF
+-RA=+—H - 2,019,055 7,038 (448,230) 1,577,863
Profit and total comprehensive A & #) K 2 5 =2
expense for the year wEE = = = (14,442) (14,442)
Lapse of share option BB HE SR = = (1,242) 1,242 =
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ—%F
+-BA=+—H - 2,019,055 5,796 (461,430) 1,563,421
1 94 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Financial Summary

RATE L2

RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE+-_B=1+—HILEE
IR ZEIEZF ZT—NF ZEZ-)N\F ZZT—tF
FHET FET FBT FET FET
Revenue WA 79,067 67,156 215,376 263,011 252,311
Loss before tax PRI AIR 1B (38,248) (83,439)  (109,498) (65,765)  (127,806)
Income tax credit (expense)  FREMIEE (FIx) (22) 9 (1,398) 66,188 2,558
(Loss) profit for the year KEE (B518) w7 (38,270) (83,430)  (110,896) 423 (125,248)
(Loss) profit for the year T ANLTEGEREE
attributable to: (B518) &= A
Owners of the Company RABHEE AN (33,410) (71,648) (95,435) (3,785)  (116,128)
Non-controlling interests TR (4,860) (11,782) (15,461) 4,208 (9,120)
(38,270) (83,430)  (110,896) 423 (125,248)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHAE
At 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®W+=ZB=+—8
ZEZ—F “TITE ZT-NEFE T N\FE IZT—tEF
FET FET FExT FET FET
Total assets BEEME 2,072,460 2,123,005 2,291,370 2,391,042 2,474,092
Total liabilities BE4A%E 108,998 107,197 193,378 176,111 226,217
1,963,462 2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875
Equity attributable to owners ZANABHEA A
of the Company e 4 2 1,787,259 1,833,004 1,923,472 2,024,328 2,056,219
Non-controlling interests JFIERG 176,203 182,804 174,520 190,603 191,656
1,963,462 2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875

HMERENELERERAT

20214E %R
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Particulars of Properties

YEEEAT

HOTEL PROPERTIES

MBS =

Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest
YA 3 ik R AR AR E TS WETE EEASL
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Hotel 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.70%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou operation sg.m. sq.m.

No. 348

Jiang Nan Da Road Central,

Haizhu District,

Guangzhou, the PRC
EMNIREBIERRAT BEINIRE RIS KEREZER  10,838.88 46,865.83 72.70%

FREE N T
BIEE
LRI K38 13485

Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC

EBIARBERRAR ERIREAE
AR
BEEE
BT
En&
16 ik B 99557

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FHK  EAHK

Hotel 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.90%
operation sg.m. sg.m.
KEREETR 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.90%

FHK  EAHR

REY*

Company Address Existing Use Lease Term

AT 3h ik REGARE A

The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Leased out  Leasehold with a term expiring on
Hotel & Suites Ltd.* Changning District, 15 October 2023

Shanghai, the PRC

HEEX (LB ARAH B BT

EE&
X LLI & 19005

* English name for identification only

* BENREEHRRG
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